
 

Alternate Rodrigo Espinoza, City of Livingston 

Alternate Nathan Magsig, City of Clovis 

 Alternate Federal Glover, Contra Costa County 

Alternate Don Nottoli, Sacramento County 

 Alternate Richard O’Brien, City of Riverbank 

Alternate Tom Blalock, BART 

Alternate Bob Link, City of Visalia 

Alternate Mike Maciel, City of Tracy 

Alternate Justin Mendes, City of Hanford 

Alternate Andrew Madellin, City of Madera 

Supervisor John Pedrozo, Chair, Merced County 

Supervisor Henry Perea, Vice-Chair, Fresno County 

Councilmember Don Tatzin, Vice-Chair, City of Lafayette 

Councilmember Patrick Hume, City of Elk Grove 

Supervisor Vito Chiesa, Stanislaus County 

Supervisor Scott Haggerty, Alameda County 

Supervisor Allen Ishida, Tulare County 

Councilmember Bob Johnson, City of Lodi 

Supervisor Doug Verboon, Kings County 

Supervisor Brett Frazier, Madera County 

 
AGENDA 

July 22, 2016 – 1:30 PM 
Antioch City Council Chambers  

200 H Street, Antioch CA 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2).  Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact San Joaquin Regional Rail Commission staff, at 209-944-6220, during 
regular business hours, at least twenty-four hours prior to the time of the meeting. 
 
All proceedings before the Authority are conducted in English.  Any writings or documents provided to a majority 
of the Authority regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection at the offices of 
the San Joaquin Regional Rail Commission located at 949 E. Channel Street, Stockton, California, 95202 during 
normal business hours or by calling (209) 944-6220.  The Agenda and meeting materials are also available on the 
San Joaquin Regional Rail Commission Website:  http://www.acerail.com/Home/AboutUs/SJJPA.aspx,  
 
1 Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call Chair Pedrozo   

2 Consent Calendar Chair Pedrozo   

2.1 Approve Minutes from May 27, 2016 Board Meeting  ACTION  

2.2 Approve Next Board Meeting Location and Time                                                                INFORMATION   

2.3 SJJPA Operating Expense Report   INFORMATION   

3 Public Comment Chair Pedrozo ACTION   

 Persons wishing to address the Authority on any item of interest to the public regarding SJJPA and the San Joaquin Rail Service shall state 

their names and addresses and make their presentation.  Please limit presentations to three minutes.  The Authority cannot take action 

on matters not on the agenda unless the action is authorized by Section 54954.2 of the Government Code. 

  

4 City of Antioch Presentation on their Rivertown 
Revitalization Project – A Specific Planning Effort for a 
Transit-Oriented Development being Conducted in the 
Vicinity of the Antioch Amtrak Station. 

Steve Duran 
Lizeht Zepeda 

INFORMATION  

 

 

http://www.acerail.com/Home/AboutUs/SJJPA.aspx


     

5 
 

Bay Area Council Presentation on their recently released 
“The Northern California Megaregion” report. 
 

Micah Weinberg 
 

INFORMATION 
 

 

6 Approve Resolution of the Governing Board of the San 
Joaquin Joint Powers Authority Approving the Minor 
Capital and Safety and Security Projects for Fiscal Year 
2016/2017 and Authorizing and Directing the Executive 
Director to Execute all Documents and Agreements 
Related to the Projects 
 

Brian Schmidt 
 

ACTION 
 

 

7 Safety and Security Update, Including SJJPA Partnership 
with Operation Lifesaver 
 

Brian Schmidt 
 

INFORMATION  

8 Approve Resolution of the Governing Board of the San 
Joaquin Joint Powers Authority Supporting September as 
Rail Safety Month, Commending Efforts Being Made to 
Improve Railroad Crossing Safety, and Urging the Public to 
be Cautious and Safe Around Railroad Tracks and 
Property, and to Remember; “SEE TRACKS? THINK 
TRAIN!” 
 

Brian Schmidt 
 

ACTION 
 

 
 

 

9 San Joaquins Operations Update 
 

Brian Schmidt  INFORMATION  

10 Approve Resolution of the Governing Board of the San 
Joaquin Joint Powers Authority Selecting Fresno as the 
Preferred Initial Location for Mid-Corridor Starts/Ends  
 

Dan Leavitt ACTION  

11 Approve Letters Supporting Transportation-Related Sales 
Tax Measures in Contra Costa, Stanislaus, and Merced 
Counties. 
 

Dan Leavitt ACTION  

12 Approve Revisions to SJJPA Marketing and Outreach Plan 
for Fiscal Year 2016/17 
 

Dan Leavitt 
 

ACTION 
 

 

13 Update on Marketing and Outreach Associated with 7th 
Daily Round-Trip 
 

Dan Leavitt 
 

INFORMATION 

 

 

14 
 

Update from Bay Area Region Marketing and Outreach 
Team  
 

Chris Colwick  INFORMATION 

 

 

15 Food Service Update 
 

Daniel Krause INFORMATION  

16 Executive Director’s Report 
 

Stacey Mortensen INFORMATION  

17 Administrative Items 
 

Dan Leavitt INFORMATION  

18 Board Member Comments 
 

Chair Pedrozo   

19 Adjournment Chair Pedrozo   
Note: Some SJJPA Board Members will be taking a tour of Downtown Antioch led by the City of Antioch. They will  
leave the Amtrak Station at 9:30 a.m. These board members will be having lunch at the Southern Café at 11:30 a.m. 

2 of 85



1 
 

SAN JOAQUIN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
July 22, 2016 

 
STAFF REPORT 

Item 2.1  ACTION 

May 27, 2016 SJJPA Board Meeting Minutes 
 
The regular meeting of the San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority (SJJPA) was held at 
1:30 PM, May 27, 2016 at the Merced County Board of Supervisors Chambers in 
Merced. 
 
1.    Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call 
 
John Pedrozo, Chairperson of the San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority (SJJPA), called 
the meeting to order at 1:30 PM.  The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Vice Chair 
Perea.  
 
Board Members Present: Chairperson Pedrozo, Vice Chair Perea, Vice Chair Tatzin, 
Verboon, Frazier, Hume, Johnson, Chiesa, Ishida, and Blalock. 
 
2. Consent Calendar  
 
2.1  Approve Minutes from March 25, 2016 Board Meeting              ACTION 
2.2  Approve Next SJJPA Board Meeting Location and Time                    ACTION 
2.3  SJJPA Operating Expense Report                   INFORMATION 
 
M/S/C (Tatzin/Blalock) to approve Item 2.1.  Passed and Adopted by the San Joaquin 
Joint Powers Authority on May 27, 2016, by the following vote to wit: 
 
Ayes:   10 Chairperson Pedrozo, Vice Chair Perea, Vice Chair Tatzin,  

           Verboon, Frazier, Hume, Johnson, Chiesa, Ishida, and Blalock 
Noes:   0 
Abstain: 0  
Absent: 0  
   
Mr. Leavitt expressed desire to hold July 22nd Board Meeting in the Bay Area.  
 
M/S/C (Tatzin/Verboon) to approve Item 2.2.  Passed and Adopted by the San Joaquin 
Joint Powers Authority on May 27, 2016, by the following vote to wit: 
 
Ayes:   10 Chairperson Pedrozo, Vice Chair Perea, Vice Chair Tatzin,  

           Verboon, Frazier, Hume, Johnson, Chiesa, Ishida, and Blalock 
Noes:   0 
Abstain: 0  
Absent: 0 

3 of 85



2 
 

Member Blalock commented how well service expenses are going with time remaining 
in fiscal year. 
 
3.    Public Comment 
 
Nate Knodt of San Joaquin Regional Transit District (RTD) spoke of roundtrip discount 
and dynamic pricing issue.  One possible solution he recommended is to apply a 
discount after the dynamic prices of each trip are selected.   
 
Doug Kerr, representing RailPAC, advocated for the continuation of the Amtrak 
Thruway Buses that run north along the coast, as it is one of the only public 
transportation options for getting in and out of Healdsburg, where he lives.  Also, he 
urged the continued collaboration between SJJPA, Capitol Corridor, Amtrak, and 
CAHSR; this collaboration will help to align schedules and achieve the ultimate goal of 
public transportation: to get people from Point A to Point B. 
 
Philip Rudnick, an attorney from Bakersfield, inquired as to what has been done since 
last board meeting to address potential violations of the Perata Law.  He also inquired 
about the details of a supposed North Bakersfield Station.  Chair Pedrozo mentioned 
Mr. Schroeder’s letter addressing Mr. Rudnick’s concerns regarding the Perata Law, 
and suggested they meet after the meeting. 
 
Speaking at the end of Item 15, Congressman Jim Costa, U.S. Representative for  
California’s 16th Congressional District, spoke of the importance and breadth of work  
conducted by the SJJPA so far.      
 
There were no additional public comments. 
  
4.    Direct Chair to Negotiate and Extend the Agreement Between SJJPA and 

SJRRC for Managing Agency Services to Provide Support for SJJPA and the 

Management and Oversight of the San Joaquins or to Work with Staff of Member 

Agencies to Initiate a Request for Proposals Process for Managing Agency 

Services               ACTION 

 
Chair Pedrozo began this item with a presentation describing the history and status of 
SJJPA managing agency services.  The content of Chair Pedrozo’s presentation is 
summarized in the Board Briefing Materials, and in Chair Pedrozo’s PowerPoint slides 
for this agenda item (available on the website). 

Vice Chair Perea spoke of his overall pleasure in the work staff has provided to the 
board.  He then spoke of his concern with sharing staff with ACE and identifying staff 
who are solely dedicated to the SJJPA.  Ms. Mortensen spoke of additional staffing that 
has taken place, and the ability to fill gaps where needed.   

4 of 85



3 
 

Vice Chair Perea asked how staff working for both ACE and the San Joaquins has 
impacted the operations of either agency.  Ms. Mortensen stressed the importance of 
teamwork and collaboration in addressing the needs of both agencies.    

Member Blalock conveyed that the Agreement with SJRRC has been going quite well 
and moved for the recommended action.  Mr. Schroeder asked for clarification 
regarding the specifics of the recommendation at hand.  Member Blalock clarified his 
move to direct chair to negotiate and extend the agreement between SJJPA and 
SJRRC.   

During public comment for this item, Mike Barnbaum, with Ride Downtown 916, 
expressed his satisfaction with SJJPA staff and commended their accessibility and 
collaboration throughout the corridor.  

Member Chiesa acknowledged the complimentary nature of ACE and the San Joaquins, 
yet stressed the importance of keeping staff’s hours separate.  

M/S/C (Blalock/Tatzin) to direct Chair to negotiate and extend the agreement between 
SJJPA and SJRRC for managing agency services to provide support for SJJPA and the 
management and oversight of the San Joaquins.  Passed and Adopted by the San 
Joaquin Joint Powers Authority on May 27, 2016, by the following vote to wit: 
 
Ayes:   10 Chairperson Pedrozo, Vice Chair Perea, Vice Chair Tatzin,  

           Verboon, Frazier, Hume, Johnson, Chiesa, Ishida, and Blalock 
Noes:   0 
Abstain: 0  
Absent: 0 
 
 
5.    Approve a Resolution of the Governing Board of the San Joaquin Joint 
Powers Authority Authorizing and Directing the Executive Director to Execute 
Any and All Documents Associated with the Master Fund Transfer Agreement – 
Annual Supplement for Minor Capital Improvement Project Funds  
ACTION 

 
Mr. Schmidt began the item with a presentation outlining the specifics of the Minor CIP 
Funds.  The content of Mr. Schmidt’s presentation is summarized in the Board Briefing 
Materials, and in Mr. Schmidt’s PowerPoint slides for this agenda item (available on the 
website). 

There was no Board discussion for this item. 

M/S/C (Perea/Tatzin) to approve a resolution of the Governing Board of the San 
Joaquin Joint Powers Authority authorizing and directing the Executive Director to 
execute any and all documents associated with the Master Fund Transfer Agreement – 
Annual Supplement for Minor Capital Improvement Project Funds.  Passed and 
Adopted by the San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority on May 27, 2016, by the following 
vote to wit: 

5 of 85



4 
 

 
Ayes:   10 Chairperson Pedrozo, Vice Chair Perea, Vice Chair Tatzin,  

           Verboon, Frazier, Hume, Johnson, Chiesa, Ishida, and Blalock 
Noes:   0 
Abstain: 0  
Absent: 0  
 
 
6.     Approve a Resolution of the Governing Board of the San Joaquin Joint 

Powers Authority Authorizing and Directing the Executive Director to Execute 

Any and All Grant Applications, Agreements, Certifications and Assurances and 

Any Other Documents Necessary to Obtain Financial Assistance Provided by the 

State of California under the FY 13-14, FY 14-15, and FY 15-16 California Transit 

Security Grant Program for the San Joaquin Amtrak Safety and Security Projects 

ACTION 

Mr. Schmidt began this item with a presentation describing Caltrans’ Security Grant 

Program and potential projects, of which will be presented at next board meeting.  The 

content of Mr. Schmidt’s presentation is summarized in the Board Briefing Materials, 

and in Mr. Schmidt’s PowerPoint slides for this agenda item (available on the website). 

Member Tatzin inquired whether FY 15-16 is the last year funds will be available, or if 

they will be allocated in future years.  Mr. Schmidt affirmed the funds will be available 

for FY 16-17.  Mr. Tatzin asked whether SJJPA administrative costs associated with 

these projects would be an eligible expense.  Mr. Schmidt said they might be, but he 

would check with Caltrans.      

Vice Chair Perea asked whether funds would be used to become Positive Train Control 
(PTC) compliant.  Mr. Schmidt assured that funds would be used as needed to update 
on-board equipment.  Vice Chair Perea expressed his resolve to ensure the railroads 
are compliant as well by the 2018 deadline.   

Member Ishida brought up the frequency of pedestrian collisions and his interest in 
fencing being an effective safety provision.  

Member Johnson expressed his concern with relying on a sole source vendor for PTC 
equipment.  He also mentioned the possibility of funds being wasted on equipment 
outdated by regulatory standards.  

Member Blalock asked the means by which cost estimates will be determined.  Mr. 
Schmidt said he would work with the railroads and Amtrak to receive estimates.          

 
M/S/C (Tatzin/Perea) to approve a resolution of the Governing Board of the San 
Joaquin Joint Powers Authority authorizing and directing the Executive Director to 
execute any and all grant applications, agreements, certifications and assurances and 

6 of 85



5 
 

any other documents necessary to obtain financial assistance provided by the State of 
California under the FY 13-14, FY 14-15, and FY 15-16 California Transit Security Grant 
Program for the San Joaquin Amtrak Safety and Security Projects.  Passed and 
Adopted by the San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority on May 27, 2016, by the following 
vote to wit: 

Ayes:   10 Chairperson Pedrozo, Vice Chair Perea, Vice Chair Tatzin,  
           Verboon, Frazier, Hume, Johnson, Chiesa, Ishida, and Blalock 

Noes:   0 
Abstain: 0  
Absent: 0 
 
7.    Approve SJJPA Letter to CHSRA and CalSTA Regarding CHSRA 2016 

Business Plan         ACTION 

 
Mr. Leavitt began the item with a presentation regarding a letter to be sent to CHSRA 
and CalSTA in response to CHSRA’s Final 2016 Business Plan draft.  The content of 
Mr. Leavitt’s presentation is summarized in the Board Briefing Materials, and in Mr. 
Leavitt’s PowerPoint slides for this agenda item (available on the website). 

Member Verboon inquired what staff has in place if CHSRA does not fulfill their 
promises in the newest Business Plan.  Mr. Leavitt explained staff will be working to 
ensure the outlined work is progressing and planning funds are available.  Member 
Verboon reiterated his concern with CHSRA’s actions thus far.  Mr. Leavitt reassured 
the Board that many agencies and individuals are watching the situation closely as well.  

Member Tatzin mentioned the status of Cap & Trade funds, and expressed his 
concerns with their impact on both SJJPA and CHSRA funding.  Mr. Leavitt confirmed 
the intent to monitor developments and the potential impact on future capital 
improvements.   

Member Hume expressed his concern with the omission of a commensurate financial 
commitment for conventional improvements for the San Joaquins, Capitol Corridor, and 
ACE.  Mr. Leavitt confirmed the lack of a financial figure, but identified commitments 
throughout the Business Plan as promising nonetheless.  

Member Frazier mentioned the inclusion of a Madera station as being an important 
addition to the CHSRA Business Plan.  

Chair Pedrozo acknowledged the impact of everyone working together towards a 
common goal, including Assemblymember Gray and Senator Cannella.  He also 
stressed the importance of maintaining a collaboration throughout the San Joaquin 
Valley. 

Member Verboon agreed with Chair Pedrozo’s sentiments, mentioning the need for 
future collaboration in mitigating the impact of High-Speed Rail in Kings County.   

7 of 85



6 
 

M/S/C (Verboon/Frazier) to approve SJJPA letter to CHSRA and CalSTA regarding 
CHSRA 2016 Business Plan.  Passed and Adopted by the San Joaquin Joint Powers 
Authority on May 27, 2016, by the following vote to wit: 

Ayes:   10 Chairperson Pedrozo, Vice Chair Perea, Vice Chair Tatzin,  
           Verboon, Frazier, Hume, Johnson, Chiesa, Ishida, and Blalock 

Noes:   0 
Abstain: 0  
Absent:  
Following the vote, Mr. Leavitt recognized the importance of Chad Edison from CalSTA 
in working to get the favorable additions and language into CHSRA’s Business Plan. 
 
8.  Approve Revisions to SJJPA Marketing and Outreach Plan for 2015/16 
ACTION 
 

Mr. Leavitt began the item with a presentation regarding allocation revisions to the 
SJJPA Marketing and Outreach Plan.  The content of Mr. Leavitt’s presentation is 
summarized in the Board Briefing Materials, and in Mr. Leavitt’s PowerPoint slides for 
this agenda item (available on the website). 

Member Tatzin asked whether the reallocated money could be carried over into the next 
fiscal year.  Mr. Leavitt confirmed the funds could carry over, but considering the 
increased marketing and outreach efforts surrounding the upcoming 7th Daily Round 
Trip, much of it would be expended this fiscal year.  
 
Member Frazier expressed his concern with booth visitors only interested in the free 
items; instead he agreed that advertising, especially social media, was the most 
effective use of funds.   
 
Member Ishida mentioned his recent experiences with Amtrak radio and TV 
advertisements, expressing his belief in movie theater advertisements being an effective 
pull for family riders.   
 
Vice Chair Perea agreed with Member Ishida’s remarks, noting the prospect of 
attracting riders to local businesses and landmarks.    
  
M/S/C (Ishida/Verboon) to approve revisions to SJJPA Marketing and Outreach Plan for 
2015/16.  Passed and Adopted by the San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority on May 27, 
2016, by the following vote to wit: 
 
Ayes:   10 Chairperson Pedrozo, Vice Chair Perea, Vice Chair Tatzin,  

           Verboon, Frazier, Hume, Johnson, Chiesa, Ishida, and Blalock 
Noes:   0 
Abstain: 0  
Absent: 0 
  
 

8 of 85



7 
 

 

 

 

9.  Update on Amtrak Contract 

 
Ms. Mortensen began the item with a presentation regarding the status of the Amtrak 
contract.  She explained the process is in the last stages, and should be finalized in the 
next couple of weeks. 
 
 
10.  Update on 7th Daily Round Trip  
 
Ms. Mortensen handed the presentation to Mr. Schmidt, who discussed the status of the 
new 7th Daily Round Trip schedule.  He discussed details of the schedule, such as the 
start time of the 7th Daily Round Trip and the time adjustments among the other trains.  
Mr. Schmidt then introduced Anthony Chappa, from Amtrak, who discussed additional 
specific details of the upcoming schedule.   
 
Vice Chair Perea asked whether the schedule layout will be adjusted to be more user 
friendly.  Mr. Chappa explained the ease of utilizing the Amtrak mobile app and website 
to understand the schedule.  Vice Chair Perea followed-up about the availability of 
various languages through these means.  Mr. Chappa was not sure about the mobile 
app, but said the Amtrak website is available in numerous languages.   
 
Member Tatzin inquired what will happen to the volume of advertising at the start of the 
new fiscal year with regards to the 7th Daily Round Trip.  Mr. Leavitt talked about the 
advertising campaign continuing through July, but not at the same rate as in June.  
 
During public comment for this item, Mr. Barnbaum spoke about the 7th Daily Round 
Trip and the increased connectivity in the new schedule between the San Joaquins and 
other trains, such as the California Zephyr.  
 
Mr. Frazier spoke about the importance of the SJJPA accomplishing projects and tasks 
it originally promised.  
 
Chair Pedrozo commented that he believes the additional train will increase ridership. 
 
11.  Marketing and Outreach Materials and Advertising  
 
Mr. Leavitt began the item with a presentation regarding an update on marketing and 
outreach materials and advertising.  The content of Mr. Leavitt’s presentation is 
summarized in the Board Briefing Materials, and in Mr. Leavitt’s PowerPoint slides for 
this agenda item (available on the website). 

During public comment for this item, Mr. Barnbaum displayed an assortment of t-shirts 
utilizing various Amtrak marketing brands.  

9 of 85



8 
 

Ms. Mortensen expressed her pleasure in the design and aesthetics of many of the 
marketing materials. 

 
12.  Update from Northern San Joaquin Valley Region Marketing and Outreach 
Team 
 
Mr. Leavitt began the item by introducing Elaine Trevino, from California Strategic 
Solutions, who presented an update on the Northern San Joaquin Valley Region 
Marketing and Outreach Team.  Ms. Trevino’s presentation is summarized in the Board 
Briefing Materials, and in Ms. Trevino’s PowerPoint slides for this agenda item 
(available on the website). 

There was no Board discussion for this item.  

 
13.  Update from Central San Joaquin Valley Region Marketing and Outreach 
Team  
 
Mr. Leavitt began the item by introducing Bruce Batti, from Jeffrey Scott Agency, who 
presented an update on the Central San Joaquin Valley Region Marketing and 
Outreach Team.  Mr. Batti’s presentation is summarized in the Board Briefing Materials, 
and in Mr. Batti’s PowerPoint slides for this agenda item (available on the website). 

Member Frazier inquired about the relationship with YARTS.  Mr. Batti confirmed a 
much more favorable connection between YARTS in the upcoming schedule.  

Member Verboon mentioned fostering a relationship with Kings Area Rural Transit  
(KART) to capitalize on cross marketing opportunities at local events.  
 
Vice Chair Perea asked whether the public knows the San Joaquins is a train based on  
the name and logo.  Mr. Batti explained the need for repetition and strategic  
engagement in attracting attention. 
 

Member Ishida spoke of the volume of foreign visitors to Sequoia National Park and the 
opportunity to attract ridership.  

 
14.  Update from the Kern County Marketing and Outreach Team 
 
Mr. Leavitt began the item by introducing Tracy Leach, from Providence Strategic 
Consulting, Inc., who presented an update on the Kern County Marketing and Outreach 
Team.  Ms. Leach’s presentation is summarized in the Board Briefing Materials, and in 
Ms. Leach’s PowerPoint slides for this agenda item (available on the website). 

Chair Pedrozo mentioned the importance of Operation Lifesaver in marketing and 
outreach efforts. 

10 of 85



9 
 

Mr. Leavitt commented on specific advertising activities of Amtrak National being  
relevant to the San Joaquins.  Ms. Mortensen applauded the outreach efforts  
throughout the corridor. 
 
15.  Amtrak San Joaquins Social Media 
 
Mr. Krause began the item with a presentation regarding an update on Amtrak San 
Joaquins’ social media.  The content of Mr. Krause’s presentation is summarized in the 
Board Briefing Materials, and in Mr. Krause’s PowerPoint slides for this agenda item 
(available on the website). 

Vice Chair Perea asked who would be managing the social media analytics.  Mr. Krause 
responded that Jeffrey Scott Agency will be managing the social media content and 
analytics, but SJJPA staff will be following through with in-house oversight.   

During public comment for this item, Mr. Barnbaum highlighted the importance of social 
media tactics and tools in attracting attention to the San Joaquins.      

 

16.  San Joaquins Operations Update 
 
Brian Schmidt, Director of Operations for the SJJPA, made a presentation to update the 
board on San Joaquin Service operations. The content of Mr. Schmidt’s presentation is 
summarized in the Board Briefing Materials, and in Mr. Schmidt’s PowerPoint slides for 
this agenda item (available on the website). 
 
Member Frazier commented on the increase in on-time performance and outreach 
efforts eventually reflecting in the ridership. 
 
Vice Chair Perea inquired how long until marketing efforts are expected to impact 
ridership.  Ms. Mortensen estimated a 6-month period for the efforts to gain traction and 
show results.     
 
Member Frazier reiterated the need for operational efficiency to maximize marketing 
efforts. 
 
Member Verboon commented on the negative ridership opinion of the Comet Cars. 
 
Chair Pedrozo also mentioned the importance of on-time performance. 
 
17. Administrative Items 
 
Ms. Mortensen had nothing to report. 
 
18. Board Member Comments 
 

11 of 85



10 
 

Chair Pedrozo mentioned the lack of communication to passengers on the train and at 
the station when trains are delayed.  Ms. Mortensen spoke of the need for Amtrak 
operational communications to transition into onboard passenger communiqué.   
 
19. Adjournment 
 
Chairman Pedrozo adjourned the meeting. 

12 of 85



SAN JOAQUIN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

July 22, 2016 

 

STAFF REPORT 

Item 2.2  INFORMATION 

Approve Next SJJPA Board Meeting Location and Start Time  

Background: 

Staff proposes Merced County Board of Supervisors Chambers (2222 M Street) for the 
October 28, 2016 SJJPA Board Meeting.  

The meeting time will be coordinated with the San Joaquin schedules.     

 

Fiscal Impact: 

There is no fiscal impact. 

 

Recommendation: 

Approve Next SJJPA Board Meeting Location/Time.  

 

 

13 of 85



SAN JOAQUIN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

July 22, 2016 

 

STAFF REPORT 

Item 2.3  INFORMATION 

SJJPA Operating Expense Report 

Please see the attached SJJPA Operating Expense Report for the 10 months (July 1, 

2015 – April 30, 2016). 

 

Recommendation: 

This is an informational item.  There is no action requested. 

 

14 of 85



SJJPA EXPENSE YTD

FY 15-16 TO PERCENT

OPERATING EXPENSES ALLOCATION DATE EXPENDED

Salaries/Benefits/Contract Help 1,278,549       817,059       63.9%

Office Expense 5,125              2,450           47.8%

Subscriptions/Periodicals/Memberships 3,690              -                    

Office Equipment Lease 13,885            7,936           57.2%

Computer Systems 10,000            -                    

Communications 6,379              -                    

Motor Pool 9,611              5,321           55.4%

Transportation/Travel 30,000            10,731         35.8%

Training 2,500              382              15.3%

Audits Regulatory Reporting 15,000            -                    

Professional Services Legislative 15,000            -                    

Professional Services Legal 50,000            28,466         56.9%

Professional Services General 70,255            31,438         44.7%

Publications/Legal Notices 5,258              7,962            

Indirect Overhead Applied -                     109,435        

1,515,252       1,021,180    67.4%

Maintenance of Headquarters Structures/Grounds 19,009            -                    

Insurance  * 20,000            19,388         96.9%

Insurance Management Fees 5,000              -                    

Security Services/Safety Program 25,000            -                    

Community Engagement & Marketing 1,000,000       222,607       22.3%

Professional Services Operations 50,000            13,760         27.5%

Communications, Operations 20,000            250              1.3%

San Joaquin Intercity Rail Operations ** -                     -                    

 -                    

1,139,009       256,005       22.5%

2,654,261       1,277,185    48.1%

 

  *   Budget reduced by $2,680,000 to $20,000. Balance of insurance costs paid directly by CalTrans. 

**    Budget reduced from $40,897,063 to -0-. Total FY15-16 operating costs paid directly by CalTrans. 

San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority

Operating Expense Report

For The Ten Months Ended April 30, 2016

 83% of Budget Year Elapsed

Project Management, Services & Supplies

Project Management, Services & Supplies  Subtotal

Contracted Services

Contracted Services Subtotal

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

15 of 85



SAN JOAQUIN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

July 22, 2016 

 

STAFF REPORT 

Item 4  INFORMATION  

City of Antioch Presentation on “Rivertown Revitalization Project” 

Steve Duran (Antioch City Manager) and Lizeht Zepeda (Antioch Economic 
Development Program Manager) will present information regarding the city’s Rivertown 
Revitalization Project which is focused on transit-oriented, walkable downtown planning 
near the Amtrak Station.  

Drawing from several revitalization studies over the years, the current work in progress 
on the Downtown Specific Plan, “Rivertown”, is a transit-oriented, walkable village with 
the village center anchored by City Hall and Waldie Plaza. Immediately encompassing 
this center is ample commercial space for shops, restaurants and small businesses. 
Also, existing in this area is the Amtrak Train Station and across the tracks is the 
favored future ferry station site. The key to enlivening this historic downtown core is to 
bring more residents as close to the core as possible to create a sense of place. 
Increasing residential density is essential to increasing train ridership, bringing in ferry 
service, and increasing evening and weekend customers to support current Rivertown 
businesses and attract new ones. 

 

Recommendation: 

This is an informational item.  There is no action requested. 

16 of 85



SAN JOAQUIN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

July 22, 2016 

 

STAFF REPORT 

Item 5  INFORMATION 

Bay Area Council Presentation on “The Northern California Megaregion” Report 
 

Micah Weinberg, President – Bay Area Council Economic Institute, will give a 
presentation on the recently released “The Northern California Megaregion” report 
which features recommendations for investment in rail, specifically, calling for further 
investment in Amtrak San Joaquins. 

The Bay Area Council Economic Institute is a public-private partnership of business, 
labor, government and higher education that works to foster a competitive economy in 
California and the San Francisco Bay Area, including San Francisco, Oakland and 
Silicon Valley. The Economic Institute produces authoritative analyses on economic 
policy issues affecting the region and the state, including infrastructure, globalization, 
energy, science and governance, and mobilizes California and Bay Area leaders around 
targeted policy initiatives. 

The Bay Area Council Economic Institute’s Northern California Megaregion study 
identified Amtrak San Joaquins service as key to helping ease congestion in the San 
Joaquin Valley and Bay Area.  The NorCal megaregion, features 21 counties and 164 
cities, and has over 12 million residents, almost one third of California’s population – 
encompassing the Bay Area, Sacramento and Northern San Joaquin Valley (San 
Joaquin, Stanislaus, and Merced Counties), and Monterey Bay Area. 

Bay Area Council Economic Institute Staff will give a short presentation on its NorCal 
megaregion study with a specific focus on its recommendations regarding passenger 
rail and Amtrak San Joaquins. 

See attached excerpt from “The Northern California Megaregion” report. To read the full 
report see: http://www.bayareaeconomy.org/report/the-northern-california-megaregion/ 

See Item 16 – Administrative Items – for press releases and media clippings. 

 
Recommendation: 

This is an informational item.  There is no action requested. 

 

17 of 85

http://www.bayareaeconomy.org/report/the-northern-california-megaregion/


THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA 
MEGAREGION 
Innovative, Connected, and Growing

June 2016

18 of 85



 34  

The Northern California Megaregion: Innovative, Connected, and Growing

Residents of the Northern California Megaregion 
have few attractive options in making their elongating 
commutes. The highway corridors that carry 
megaregional commuters are experiencing growing 
vehicle volumes, and the constrained reach and 
schedules of transit systems are only able to serve a 
small portion of the increasing number of commuters. 

Increasing	Inter-Regional	Commutes	Add	to	
Highway Congestion 
Workers commuting to San Francisco and the East Bay 
have the highest mean travel time of any metropolitan 
area in the nation. Over 2.0% of all workers in the San 
Francisco-Oakland-Fremont metropolitan statistical 
area have commutes that last more than 90 minutes. 
Additionally, San Joaquin County places in the top 10 
nationally for its percentage of residents with a commute 
over 90 minutes long.26 These lengthy commutes can be 
explained in part by the long distance traveled, and also 
by the growing amount of congestion on interregional 
roadways.

On weekdays in 2014, an average of 602,000 vehicles 
entered or exited the nine-county Bay Area from 
other parts of the Northern California Megaregion—
representing an increase of 38% since 1992.27 The 
majority of these vehicles utilize megaregional gateway 
corridors, which connect the Northern San Joaquin 
Valley, the Monterey Bay Area, and the Sacramento Area 
to the Bay Area. 

These corridors include: 

• Interstate 80 connecting Sacramento and Davis to 
Solano County, 

• Highway 17 between Santa Cruz and San Jose, 

• Highway 101 between San Benito and Santa Clara 
counties, and 

• Interstate 580/205 linking Alameda County and the 
Northern San Joaquin Valley.  

Transportation	Inefficiencies	Are	Constraining									
Megaregional Movement

Congestion Grows in the Tri-Valley

The Tri-Valley area is situated on the east 
side of the Bay Area, composed of the cities 
of Dublin, Pleasanton, Livermore, Danville, 
and San Ramon, and it provides a unique 
case study of how the lack of megaregional 
planning has transportation systems in the 
area. The Tri-Valley straddles I-580—a major 
thoroughfare for commuters and the main 
conduit between the Northern San Joaquin 
Valley and the Port of Oakland. Interstate 
580 from the San Joaquin County boundary 
through the Tri-Valley ranks eighth on the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s 
list of most delayed corridors in the Bay Area. 
Between 2011 and 2013, average daily vehicle 
hours of delay on I-580 through the Tri-Valley 
grew by 26%.

With congestion growing, express lanes have 
been installed in both directions of I-580, 
spanning 14 miles in the Tri-Valley corridor. 
Express lanes maximize the efficiency of the 
entire highway by offering excess carpool 
lane capacity to solo drivers willing to pay 
a toll. They also employ a dynamic pricing 
strategy depending on the real-time level of 
congestion.

The Tri-Valley is home to stations for BART 
and Altamont Corridor Express (ACE), but 
there is currently a 10-mile gap between these 
systems. Connecting them has the potential to 
reduce travel time and to provide passengers 
with improved mobility from the Northern San 
Joaquin Valley to the Tri-Valley and all reaches 
of the Bay Area. Goods movement can also 
benefit from congestion relief in the heavily 
traveled I-580 Altamont Pass corridor.

19 of 85



 35  

Moving to a Megaregional Labor Market

Transit Systems 
Provide	Limited	
Alternatives to 
Roadways
Only three of the 
Northern California 
Megaregion’s many 
transit operators are 
truly megaregional in 
their nature—Capitol 
Corridor and the San 
Joaquin Corridor 
(both of which run 
Amtrak service), and 
the Altamont Corridor 
Express. Ridership 
on all three of these 
systems has increased 
as the geography of 
job and population 
growth has led to 
longer commutes. 
Growing connectivity 
between regional 
economies has also 
produced demand 
for more intercity 
trips during off-peak 
commute hours.

Analysis: Bay Area Council Economic Institute, Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Authority

Each of the megaregional transit lines carries more than 1 million passengers annually, and 
ridership growth is especially strong on the routes serving the Northern San Joaquin Valley. 

20 of 85



 36  

The Northern California Megaregion: Innovative, Connected, and Growing

Capitol Corridor (operated by Amtrak)

The third most traveled intra-state corridor in the Amtrak 
system, Capitol Corridor had total ridership of 1.48 
million in 2015. Of these trips, 65% were work related, 
highlighting the system’s importance to the movement of 
workers in the Northern California Megaregion.

Capitol Corridor operates 15 daily round trips between 
Sacramento and Oakland. Seven of these daily round 
trips extend to San Jose and one connects to Auburn 
in Placer County. Bus connections also extend Capitol 
Corridor’s reach to San Francisco. The route has 17 
stations and is run on 170 miles of track primarily owned 
and dispatched by Union Pacific Railroad. The Capitol 
Corridor Joint Powers Authority manages the service 
through an operating agreement with Amtrak. 

San Joaquins (operated by Amtrak)

With ridership of 1.18 million in 2015, San Joaquins 
service is the fifth most traveled intra-state corridor in 
the Amtrak system. The San Joaquins has six daily round 
trips (four between Oakland and Bakersfield, and two 
between Sacramento and Bakersfield) traveling through 
11 counties, with 17 stations, over 364 miles. Amtrak San 
Joaquins Thruway bus service also offers travel to more 
than 135 destinations, including Los Angeles, San Diego, 
San Francisco, Napa, Las Vegas, and Reno.

As of July 2015, administrative responsibility for the 
San Joaquins service was transferred from the state to 
the San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority, which includes 
representation from many of the counties served. The 
San Joaquins service is deploying a seventh daily 
round trip in June 2016, and is now working with state 
officials to secure the funding necessary for capital 
improvements to run an eighth daily round trip. 

Altamont Corridor Express (ACE)

ACE operates commuter rail service with four weekday 
round trips between Stockton and San Jose at peak 
hours. In 2014, the ACE system carried nearly 1.3 
million passengers. ACE trains make the two-hour trip 
between Stockton and San Jose over 86 miles of track 
owned by Union Pacific Railroad. 

Ridership on ACE has doubled in the last five years due 
to growing commuter demand from the Northern San 
Joaquin Valley to the Tri-Valley and Silicon Valley area. 
Additionally, ACE added a fourth round trip in 2012, 
which gave riders more flexibility. ACE’s most heavily 
used station of origin for the morning westbound 
commute is Tracy, and its most used destination station 
in the morning is Great America in Santa Clara. Ridership 
to and from these stations underscores the growth 
that the Northern San Joaquin Valley has experienced 
in recent years and the trend of many of its residents 
commuting to Silicon Valley for work.  

Shared	System	Between	Passenger	and	
Freight	Rail	Limits	Ability	to	Improve	Service
All passenger rail operations in the Northern California 
Megaregion—with the exception of BART and Caltrain—
operate on track owned by private freight operators. 
As the three megaregional rail agencies look to expand 
ridership through extensions of their infrastructure and/
or more frequent trains, their ability to improve service 
levels is complicated by this relationship that is depen-
dent on freight rail. 

Depending on the various arrangements between freight 
and passenger rail operators, there are limited oppor-
tunities to run more trains. For example, only 20 round 
trip slots between Oakland and Sacramento are currently 
available for passenger service, with the restriction that 
these trains have 40-minute headways. These frequency 
and scheduling restrictions limit the ability to expand 
service during peak hours. 

The investments necessary to add capacity under this 
shared corridor approach—passing tracks or dedicated 
tracks for each service—are costly, but represent the 
main hurdle to achieving the recommendations outlined 
below. It should be recognized, however, that adding 
capacity in existing right-of-way is much less costly than 
implementing entirely new rail corridors. A further discus-
sion of the relationship between passenger and freight 
rail can be found in Section 5. 

21 of 85



 37  

Spotlight on High Speed Rail

In January 2015, the California High Speed Rail Authority broke ground on the nation’s first high-speed rail system 
in downtown Fresno. This initial segment will be a piece of a line connecting the Central Valley and Silicon Valley 
that is expected to begin passenger service in 2025. High-speed trains will run through the Northern California 
Megaregion, extending from Bakersfield to San Francisco, tying into an electrified Caltrain corridor, and ultimately 
reaching the Transbay Transit Center. A station in Merced will provide service to San Jose in less than an hour, 
providing a new, high-speed link between the Northern San Joaquin Valley and Silicon Valley.

The High Speed Rail Authority’s 2016 Business Plan lays out a sequence of construction projects, with the first 
phase of the high-speed rail system connecting San Francisco to the Los Angeles area, and a second phase adding 
service to Sacramento and San Diego. Construction is being funded using state bonds that voters approved with the 
passage of Proposition 1A in 2008, federal funding provided through the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act 
of 2009, and an ongoing appropriation of the state’s cap-and-trade revenues (though these proceeds are subject 
to volatility in receipts from carbon credit auctions). Once ridership and revenue are demonstrated on the initial 
segments, the High Speed Rail Authority will engage private operators to manage the system.

The High Speed Rail Authority has also been working with rail agencies across the state to make progress on 
improved network integration. Linking commuter and intercity rail investments to high-speed rail will ensure greater 
ridership numbers and more seamless commutes for users. In the Northern California Megaregion, enhanced 
connectivity between the planned station in Merced and Sacramento is a priority. In addition, the Silicon Valley 
to Central Valley segment will connect to Amtrak San Joaquins service at the Madera station, and Caltrain, BART, 
Capitol Corridor, ACE, and high-speed rail service will all meet in San Jose.

 27S e c t i o n  1 :  Pr o g r e s s 2 0 1 6  B u s i n e s s  P l a n :  C o n n e c t i n g  a n d  Tra n s f o r m i n g  C a l i f o r n i a

NEVADA

N

Miles
30157.50

BAKERSFIELD

KINGS/TULARE

FRESNO

MADERA

MERCED

MODESTO
MILLBRAESFO

SAN JOSE

GILROY

STOCKTON

SACRAMENTO

SAN
FRANCISCO

PALMDALE

BURBANK

LOS ANGELES UNION STATION

NORWALK/SANTA FE SPRINGS
FULLERTON

ANAHEIM

SAN
BERNARDINO

RIVERSIDE

MURRIETA

ESCONDIDO

SAN DIEGO

LEGEND

Phase 2

ACE

Caltrain

Capitol Corridor

San Joaquin

Pacific Surfliner

Metrolink

Phase 1

Proposed HSR Stations

EXHIBIT 1.3  STATEWIDE RAIL MODERNIZATION

 27S e c t i o n  1 :  Pr o g r e s s 2 0 1 6  B u s i n e s s  P l a n :  C o n n e c t i n g  a n d  Tra n s f o r m i n g  C a l i f o r n i a

NEVADA

N

Miles
30157.50

BAKERSFIELD

KINGS/TULARE

FRESNO

MADERA

MERCED

MODESTO
MILLBRAESFO

SAN JOSE

GILROY

STOCKTON

SACRAMENTO

SAN
FRANCISCO

PALMDALE

BURBANK

LOS ANGELES UNION STATION

NORWALK/SANTA FE SPRINGS
FULLERTON

ANAHEIM

SAN
BERNARDINO

RIVERSIDE

MURRIETA

ESCONDIDO

SAN DIEGO

LEGEND

Phase 2

ACE

Caltrain

Capitol Corridor

San Joaquin

Pacific Surfliner

Metrolink

Phase 1

Proposed HSR Stations

EXHIBIT 1.3  STATEWIDE RAIL MODERNIZATION

High	Speed	Rail	and	the	Northern	California	Megaregion

22 of 85



 38  

The Northern California Megaregion: Innovative, Connected, and Growing

When the California High Speed Rail Authority 
announced that its first phase of project construction 
will route track between Bakersfield and the Bay Area, 
instead of Los Angeles, the imperative to create a more 
unified and connected megaregional transportation 
network grew substantially. For High Speed Rail to have 
its desired effect of improving connectivity across the 
megaregion and the state, it needs connections to a 
network that can efficiently distribute the regional and 
megaregional commute market. Housing policy changes 
that target transit-oriented development and faster 
construction can work in combination with a cohesive 
megaregional transit system to facilitate the movement 
of an expanding population.

Recommendation #1: Support ACE’s Growing 
Ridership with Improved Levels of Service

Altamont Corridor Express trains need to increase their 
frequency of service and expand to additional markets 
to serve the growing commuter demand between Silicon 
Valley and the Northern San Joaquin Valley and to 
become a true megaregional intercity transit option. The 
ACEforward plan calls for six daily round trip trains by 
2019 and at least 10 daily round trips by 2023 (increased 
from the four current round trips today). A second 
component of ACEforward extends its service area to the 
downtowns of Manteca, Modesto (by 2018), Turlock, and 
Merced (by 2022). 

600,000

700,000

800,000

900,000

1,000,000

1,100,000

1,200,000

1,300,000

1,400,000

1,500,000

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Megaregional Passenger Rail Ridership 2007-2014

Note: Capitol Corridor ridership data prior to 2013 have been adjusted downward by 17.5% from reported 
data due to over-estimation of ridership related to multi-ride ticketing. 
Data Source: American Public Transportation Association; National Association of Railroad Passengers
Analysis: Bay Area Council Economic Institute

Investing in Needed Housing and Transportation Infrastructure

23 of 85



 39  

Moving to a Megaregional Labor Market

ACE forecasts ridership of up to 5.9 million by 2025 
if all new train and extension projects are completed, 
an increase of 340% from ridership levels today. The 
extension would position ACE as a connecting service 
for the initial segment of High Speed Rail being built 
between San Jose and the Central Valley. Extending ACE 
can also provide economic benefits to local communities 
in the Northern San Joaquin Valley, as transit-oriented 
development can revitalize downtown areas that have 
become isolated.

With a future ACE connection to a High Speed Rail 
station in Merced, plans should also be developed and 
funding put in place to extend the ACE service north 
to Sacramento. A Sacramento connection for High 
Speed Rail is included in the Phase 2 portion of the High 
Speed Rail plan; however, funding for construction of 
this segment has not been secured, and its completion 
may be many years away. An extension of ACE from 
Stockton to Sacramento can provide a more near-
term transportation solution and allow ACE to serve 
the Sacramento Area in addition to the Northern San 
Joaquin Valley and Bay Area.  

Recommendation #2: Make Capitol Corridor a More 
Attractive Option for Commuters

Capitol Corridor can greatly improve the business 
interactions between the Sacramento Area and the 
Bay Area. It can also serve the entire megaregion with 
connections to high-speed rail, BART, ACE, and other 
regional transit systems. However, its frequencies and 
travel times keep it from reaching its full potential.

Capitol Corridor travels between Oakland and Sacra-
mento in 1 hour and 45 minutes. It connects passengers 
between San Jose and Sacramento in about 3 hours. 
Capitol Corridor has a long-term vision to reduce these 
travel times to 1 hour and 90 minutes, respectively, 
through a series of targeted major investments. These 
include a new transfer station to BART at West Oakland 
and more direct alignments that allow for higher speeds.

In the near term, Capitol Corridor hopes to increase its 
daily service frequency through the following strategies:

• Increase Oakland to San Jose service from seven 
to 11 daily round trips, with a longer-term vision to 
have 15 round trips through the entire corridor, from 
San Jose to Sacramento. 

• Expand service to Auburn and Roseville in Placer 
County. These existing stations are served by one 
westbound morning train and a late afternoon train 
in the eastbound direction. Infrastructure improve-
ments could lead to 10 daily round trips between 
Sacramento and Roseville. 

• Extend service to Salinas in Monterey County, with 
a plan for two daily round trips that could expand to 
as many as six over time. Union Pacific Railroad track 
already runs to Salinas, but track improvements and 
station planning would need to occur to facilitate 
passenger use.

ACEforward Extension (dashed line)

Capitol	Corridor	Route	Map

24 of 85



 40  

The Northern California Megaregion: Innovative, Connected, and Growing

Recommendation #3: Improve and Expand the San 
Joaquins Amtrak Service 

Currently, the San Joaquins service has only two daily 
round trips between the Northern San Joaquin Valley 
and Sacramento. The first San Joaquins train arrives 
in Sacramento at around 12:30 p.m.; the second train 
arrives in Sacramento at 11:30 p.m. at night. The same 
issue exists for the service between the Northern San 
Joaquin Valley and Oakland. There are currently four 
daily round trips between the Northern San Joaquin 
Valley and Oakland (a fifth is being added in June 
2016). However, the first of these trains does not arrive 
in Oakland until about 11:00 a.m., giving them limited 
usefulness for business travelers that would want to 
make a trip between the Northern San Joaquin Valley 
and the East Bay/San Francisco.  

Frequency and the time of day served are major 
impediments for the San Joaquins to serve the 
commuter market between the Bay Area, Northern 
San Joaquin Valley, and the Sacramento Area. The San 
Joaquins also have the potential to serve a greater 
amount of non-commute intercity trips, which include 
trips taken for business and leisure purposes.  

Recommendation #4: Prioritize Rail Connectivity in 
the 2018 California State Rail Plan

The entire megaregional transportation network would 
benefit from improved connections between its rail 
services. In addition to building a seamless connection 
between ACE and High Speed Rail in Merced, there 
are opportunities for investments in megaregional 
transit hubs in Livermore, San Jose, and Oakland. These 
investments should be prioritized in the 2018 California 
State Rail Plan, which Caltrans is currently working to 
formulate:

Livermore Connects the Bay Area and the Northern 
San Joaquin Valley

Today, no seamless connections are available for passen-
gers who wish to utilize the BART system in conjunc-
tion with ACE. With the goal of connecting BART and 
ACE, the Altamont Regional Rail Advisory Committee 
(comprised of representatives from both Alameda 
County and San Joaquin County) is now exploring 
options for a connection in Livermore. 

The proposed BART extension to Livermore at Isabel 
Avenue can fill a portion of the current 10-mile gap 
between the Dublin/Pleasanton BART station and ACE. 
A direct connection between ACE and BART is a logical 
next step, either through an extension of ACE to meet 
BART at Isabel Avenue or an extension of BART to 
Greenville Road in Livermore. Either option would boost 
ACE ridership28 and BART ridership and eliminate car 
trips through the I-580 Altamont Pass.

San Jose as a Future Transit Hub for the Megaregion 

The California High Speed Rail Authority plans to begin 
passenger service on a line between San Jose and 
Bakersfield by 2025. Additionally, the Santa Clara County 
Valley Transportation Authority seeks to extend BART to 
San Jose by 2025. San Jose’s Diridon Station already is 
home to service provided by ACE, Caltrain, and Capitol 
Corridor. With two new rail services arriving in San Jose 
in 2025—and both potentially bringing significantly 
more riders—improvements to the Diridon Station are 
paramount to allow easy connections between all five 
services.

Transbay Corridor in Need of Capacity Improvements

Leaders in the Bay Area have begun discussing the 
need for a second transbay transit crossing and regional 
agencies are currently studying investment needs in the 
transbay corridor—including a second tube that could 
carry BART or other standard gauge rail. One concept 
for this link involves a new transit terminal in Oakland, 
which would connect BART, Capitol Corridor, and San 
Joaquins services. While a project of this magnitude 
would take years to plan, finance, and execute, it also 
has importance to the megaregion as another means to 
move commuters into and out of core areas on transit.

Recommendation #5: Use Megaregional Partners in 
Advocacy Efforts to Secure Funding; Simultaneously 
Explore Dedicated Sources of Infrastructure Finance

Infrastructure projects that span the megaregion require 
partnership and support from a megaregional group 
of stakeholders. The ACE, San Joaquins, and Capitol 
Corridor projects described above require a significant 
amount of coordination and capital investment. 

These projects have extensive megaregional benefits—
they take vehicles off of roadways, lower greenhouse gas 

25 of 85



 41  

Moving to a Megaregional Labor Market

emissions, and improve local economies by making them 
more attractive places to live and work. These benefits 
need to be recognized across the megaregion so that a 
coalition can support efforts to gain funding from Sacra-
mento and Washington.

Funding sources for intercity passenger rail improve-
ments might include tapping into the 40% of cap-and-
trade funding that is currently unallocated. There should 
be a larger, on-going allocation of cap-and-trade funds 
to intercity and commuter rail services. While the Transit 
& Intercity Rail Capital Program receives 10% of cap-and-
trade revenues each year, intercity and commuter rail 
services are not well positioned to compete against local 
and regional transit services for these dollars. 

A dedicated allocation to conventional rail—through 
a separate cap-and-trade pot—can create better link-
ages to the future High Speed Rail system. It will also 
simultaneously improve the transportation system in 
the Northern California Megaregion, which will become 
increasingly necessary as the population expands.   

More innovative, long-term solutions include tolling 
on highway corridors that are adjacent to intercity rail 
lines. This option could expand the Bay Area’s express 
lane program—which collects tolls from solo drivers 
for their use of the carpool lane—to adjacent counties. 
These tolls could be collected on a megaregional basis 
and serve as the foundation of funding for intercity rail 
service. For example, tolling along the I-80 corridor 
would help to fund Capitol Corridor, and tolls collected 
on portions of I-5 and I-580 would support ACE. 

Other funding solutions for intercity rail infrastructure 
investments could also come from an increased gas 
tax, vehicle miles traveled fees, and increased vehicle 
registration fees—all of which should receive more 
attention at the state level as a means to produce 
sustainable financing streams for the state’s infrastructure 
improvements.

Recommendation #6: Streamline housing approval 
processes in areas across the megaregion, especially 
those that are served by transit

In May 2016, Governor Brown proposed a change to 
state law that would streamline certain local housing 
approval processes. The state, especially its coastal 
metropolitan areas including the Bay Area, has histor-
ically underbuilt housing.29  California’s local finance 
structures encourage cities to build commercial devel-
opments, which are accompanied by higher tax receipts, 
over residential developments, which can cause a finan-
cial drag given the need to provide public services. Local 
resistance has been a major cause of this underbuilding 
as opponents of new housing can use the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review process to 
delay construction, producing additional legal costs for 
developers.  

The governor proposes that cities and counties require 
only “by-right” approval for certain types of housing 
projects. Infill, multi-family developments that conform 
with existing general plan and zoning rules would qualify 
for by-right approval if 20% of the units are set aside as 
affordable for low-income households. This threshold 
falls to 10% for projects near an existing or planned 
transit stop. Projects that go through the by-right 
approval process would be exempt from CEQA review 
and cities and counties would be given 30 days to review 
qualifying projects.  

By-right approval can help to spur housing develop-
ment across the Northern California Megaregion. Most 
importantly, it can facilitate higher density building near 
existing or planned rail stations that will give residents 
greater choice in where they live and work. Investments 
that increase train frequencies can have the effect of 
increasing demand for transit-oriented housing—this 
proposal can make that housing a reality. Additionally, 
the new stations that are built as a result of high-speed 
rail construction will more quickly promote economic 
revitalization, as developers will have more certainty of 
the types of construction that will be approved. 

26 of 85



SAN JOAQUIN JOINT POWES AUTHORITY 
July 22, 2016 

 
STAFF REPORT 

Item 6  ACTION 

Approve Resolution of the Governing Board of the San Joaquin Joint Powers 
Authority Approving the Minor Capital and Safety and Security Projects for Fiscal 
Year 2016/2017 and Authorizing and Directing the Executive Director to Execute 
all Documents and Agreements Related to the Projects 
 
Background:  
 
As part of the 2016 SJJPA Business Plan funding for Minor Capital and Safety and 
Security funding is not to exceed $1,800,000.  The funding for the projects is associated 
with two funding programs, State of California Minor Capital Funding approved through 
the State Budget process and allocated to each of the Intercity Rail Corridors and 
annual apportionments from the 2006 State Proposition 1B Safety and Security 
Program. 
 
At the May 27th, 2016 SJJPA Board Meeting the Board approved the Master Fund 
Transfer Agreement for Minor Capital Projects with Caltrans, and approved a Resolution 
authorizing the Executive Director to execute the grant applications, agreements, and 
certifications and assurances to obtain financial assistance provided by the State of 
California under California Transit Security Grant Program Proposition 1B for the San 
Joaquin Amtrak Safety and Security projects. 
 
Staff has been working with Caltrans, Amtrak, BNSF and UPRR over the past six 
months to identify Minor Capital and Safety and Security projects for fiscal year 
2016/2017.  Below is the list of projects recommended for approval: 
 

Minor Capitol Projects 
      

Bakersfield        

 Repair Tactile and paint (approx. 800 ft)   $50,000  

 Install electronic door access to baggage room  $6,000  

 Police office mods. --install ceiling, lighting, and    

 insulate walls     $10,000  

 Lug. cart boundary system    $20,000  

 Install ambient noise sensor for PA system-trackside $7,000  

        

 Install additional wayside power - 7th roundtrip  $60,000  

        

Corcoran Repaint platform tactile & restore     

 platform safety stripe and text to meet Federal ADA req. $7,500  

        

Fresno Replace existing Station identifier signs with newer signs $60,000  

27 of 85



 Platform modification at south end for cart turnaround $25,000  

 Concrete pad near luggage counter is causing a tripping  

 hazard.    $2,500  

        

Madera Install station identifier signs    $30,000  

        

Merced Drought tolerant landscaping, redo sprinklers  $30,000  

         

Modesto Install station identifier signs    $50,000  

 Const. Manager Office    $25,000  

        

Martinez Repaint light posts, paint over graffiti, paint luggage carts $30,000  

 Relocate gate to bottom of stairs   $17,000  

 Install station identifier signs    $55,000  

        

Oakland Shelving units for baggage    $20,000  

 Repair broken platform tactile and repaint 1,500 ft  $25,000  

        

Sacramento Pressure wash and repaint platform per PUC  $55,000  

        

San Francisco Modify HVAC ductwork and vents   $10,000  

        

Stockton Upgrade remainder of existing exterior lights located on  

 station building and parking lot lights to L.E.D.  $99,000  

 Fill in asphalt at crossings    $5,000  

 Repair cracked sidewalk    $5,000  

        

Turlock Install concrete ramps on each side of platform--PUC $20,000  

 Drought tolerant landscaping and modify sprinklers $30,000  

        

Wasco Improvements to the entrance from the parking lot,  

 landscaping and sidewalks    $30,000  

 Remove cable hanging on side of building  $1,500  

        

Multiple Stations Install No trespassing signs    $10,000  

 Replace existing A-10 signs    $34,500  

 Replace signage at Bus Stops    $50,000  

 Replace Defective VSS Workstations in 6 stations   

 (BFD, HNF, MDR, MCD, MOD & SKN).   $20,000  

 Upgrade existing VSS Wireless Routers at 12 San Joaquin  

 Stations.      $100,000  

        

       $1,000,000  
        

28 of 85



 

 

       

Safety and Security Projects      

        

Allensworth Install 4' wide concrete strip, tactile, striping and text  

 in existing platform. Overlay and bring 8" T.O.R. Furnish  

 and install new handrail, wheel chair lift and enclosure. $300,000  

        

Merced Upgrade existing lighting to LED lighting: platform, parking,  

 station and baggage room (flagging req’d)  $105,000  

        

Oakland Upgrade lighting to LED on platform   $55,000  

        

Stockton Install security fence with electronic gate at bus entrance. $220,000  

 Security upgrade: access control, harden doors in Police Offices 

 Upgrade remainder of existing exterior lights located on  

 station building and parking lot lights to L.E.D.  $99,000  

        

       $779,000 
 
  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Funding for the Minor Capital and Safety and Security Projects are in the Approved 
2016 SJJPA Business Plan and Budget. 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve Resolution of the Governing Board of the San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority 
Approving the Minor Capital and Safety and Security Projects for Fiscal Year 2016/2017 
and Authorizing and Directing the Executive Director to Execute all Documents and 
Agreements Related to the Projects  

29 of 85



 

SJJPA RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

Resolution of the Governing Board of the San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority 
Approving the Minor Capital and Safety and Security Projects for Fiscal Year 
2016/2017 and Authorizing and Directing the Executive Director to Execute all 

Documents and Agreements Related to the Projects 
  
 WHEREAS, the 2016 SJJPA Business Plan identifies $1,800,000 in funding for 
Minor Capital and Safety and Security Projects for Fiscal Year 2016/2017; and   
  
 WHEREAS, the SJJPA Staff has worked with Caltrans, Amtrak, BNSF and 
UPRR on Identifying Minor Capital and safety and Security projects along the San 
Joaquin Corridor and at Stations; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the San Joaquin Regional Joint Powers Authority (SJJPA) has 
Approved the Master Fund Transfer Agreement for Minor Capital Projects with Caltrans; 
And 
 

WHEREAS, the San Joaquin Regional Joint Powers Authority (SJJPA) has 
Authorized the Executive Director to Execute and All Documents and Agreements 
Associated with securing State of California Proposition 1B – Safety and Security 
funding; and  
 

WHEREAS, the San Joaquin Regional Joint Powers Authority (SJJPA) has 
reviewed the list of Projects Presented at the July 22, 2016 SJJPA Board Meeting, 
attached as reference; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOVLED by the Governing Board of the San 

Joaquin Joint Powers Authority to Approve the Minor Capital and Safety and Security 
Projects for Fiscal Year 2016/2017 and Authorizing and Directing the Executive Director 
to Execute all Documents Related and Agreements Related to the Projects 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority this 22nd, day of 
July, 2016, by the following vote:  
 
AYES:       
NOES:        
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN: 
   
ATTEST: SAN JOAQUIN JOINT POWERS 

AUTHORITY  

 

 

_______________________________  __________________________ 
STACEY MORTENSEN    JOHN PEDROZO, Chair 
Executive Director 

30 of 85



SAN JOAQUIN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

July 22, 2016 

 

STAFF REPORT 

Item 7  INFORMATION  

Safety and Security Update, Including SJJPA Partnership with Operation 
Lifesaver 
 

A staff presentation will be made at the meeting. 
 

31 of 85



SAN JOAQUIN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

July 22, 2016 

 

STAFF REPORT 

Item 8  ACTION  

Approve Resolution of the Governing Board of the San Joaquin Joint Powers 
Authority Supporting September as Rail Safety Month, Commending Efforts 
Being Made to Improve Railroad Crossing Safety, and Urging the Public to be 
Cautious and Safe Around Railroad Tracks and Property, and to Remember; “SEE 
TRACKS? THINK TRAIN!” 

September is Rail Safety Month in California. Each year, support is requested for 

California Rail Safety Month.  The SJJPA would like to be able to show this support in 

advance of September by approving the attached resolution.  

Background: 

In 2009 the State of California, in support of California Operation Lifesaver (CAOL), 

proclaimed September as Rail Safety Month.  CAOL partners – ACE, Amtrak, BNSF, 

Caltrain, Caltrans, CFNR, Metrolink, Modesto & Empire Traction Company, North 

County Transit District, Operation Lifesaver Inc., OCTA, Richmond Pacific Railroad, 

Santa Clara VTA, SJVR, UP, and Veolia – continue to support Rail Safety Month efforts 

and related educational activities/events each September to promote rail safety 

awareness.   

The Northern, Southern, and San Diego Rail Safety Teams, that include many of these 

same CAOL partners, support the mission of Operation Lifesaver and work with CAOL 

to promote Rail Safety Awareness in September and throughout the year.  The teams 

and CAOL are active throughout the San Joaquin corridor working to increase their rail 

safety message to educate the public in cities and communities in this corridor.   

Each September, California Operation Lifesaver presentations and events are planned 

and executed in these cities and other communities throughout the entire month.  CAOL 

utilizes many different methods to deliver the rail safety message which include: Rail 

Safety Presentations, Community Event Outreach, Rail Safety Blitz’s, Media Outreach, 

PSA’s and more.  CAOL collaborates with railroads and transit providers, city 

governments, school districts, public service agencies, private industry organizations, 

and area businesses to raise awareness about safety among the groups and 

communities that need it most. 

 

Fiscal Impact: 

32 of 85



There is no fiscal impact. 

 

Recommendation: 

Approve Resolution of Governing Board of the San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority 
supporting September as Rail Safety Month, commending efforts being made to 
improve railroad crossing safety, and urging the public to be cautious and safe around 
railroad tracks and property and to remember; “SEE TRACKS? THINK TRAIN!” 
 

33 of 85



 

SJJPA RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE SAN JOAQUIN JOINT 
POWERS AUTHORITY SUPPORTING SEPTEMBER AS RAIL SAFETY MONTH 
COMMENDING EFFORTS BEING MADE TO IMPROVE RAILROAD CROSSING 
SAFETY AND URGE THE PUBLIC TO BE CAUTIOUS AND SAFE AROUND 
RAILROAD TRACKS AND PROPERTY AND TO REMEMBER “SEE TRACKS? 
THINK TRAIN!” 

 
 

WHEREAS, the San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority places a priority on rail safety 

and supports the rail safety efforts of California Operation Lifesaver and our rail partners’ 

efforts work to improve railroad safety and to educate people of the dangers of not 

obeying the signs and signals around railroad property; and 

WHEREAS, September is historically back to school month for most children and 
college students where many must cross railroad tracks to attend school, and it is 
important to reinforce rail safety with both children and their caretakers; and  
 

WHEREAS, California Operation Lifesaver, the Federal Rail Administration, the 
California Department of Transportation, the California Public Utilities Commission, and 
freight and passenger railroads are working together to improve railroad safety and to 
educate children and adults of the dangers of not obeying the signs and signals around 
railroad property; and 
 

WHEREAS, railroad operators, motor vehicle operators, and pedestrians will 

benefit from a combined effort by local, state, and Federal Government, industry and 

citizen efforts to promote safety around railroad tracks and crossings and reduce the 

likelihood of train related incidents; and 

WHEREAS, September is Rail Safety Month in the State of California; and 

WHEREAS, the See Tracks? Think Train campaign by Operation Lifesaver, 

and its federal partners aims to help reduce pedestrian and driver injuries and fatalities 

around railroad tracks by highlighting behaviors that put people at great risk; and 

WHEREAS, California Operation Lifesaver supports the See Tracks? Think 

Train effort by conducting on-the-ground law enforcement trainings, safety 

presentations, and public awareness activities to help reduce train related incidents; and 

NOW THEREFOR BE IT RESOLVED, that the Governing Board of the San 
Joaquin Joint Powers Authority do hereby support September as Rail Safety Month, 
commend efforts being made to improve railroad crossing safety, and urge the public to 
be cautious and safe around railroad tracks and property and to remember; “SEE 
TRACKS? THINK TRAIN!” 

34 of 85



 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, by the SJJPA this 22nd day of July, 2016, by the following vote: 
 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

 

ATTEST:       SAN JOAQUIN JOINT 
       POWERS AUTHORITY 
 

 
______________________________   ______________________ 
Stacey Mortensen, Executive Director     John Pedrozo, Chair 

35 of 85



SAN JOAQUIN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

July 22, 2016 

 

STAFF REPORT 

Item 9  INFORMATION 

San Joaquin Operations Update 

 
Operations/On-Time Performance: 
 
Staff will present Information on Ridership, On-Time Performance and Train delay 

information at the Board Meeting, including initial information about the 7th Daily Round 

Trip. 

 
 
Fiscal Impact: 

There is no fiscal impact to the SJJPA.   

 

Recommendation: 

This is an informational item.  There is no action requested. 

 
 

36 of 85



SAN JOAQUIN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
July 22, 2016 

 
STAFF REPORT 

Item 10  ACTION 

Approve a Resolution of the Governing Board of the San Joaquin Joint Powers 
Authority Selecting Fresno as the Preferred Initial Location for Mid-Corridor 
Starts/Ends  
 

Background: 

The 2016 Business Plan identifies the SJJPA’s strong interest in initiating the San 
Joaquins mid-corridor in order to enable the service to arrive at the end-points 
(Sacramento, Oakland, and Bakersfield) in the early morning hours. 

The 7th daily round trip was selected as a full-corridor round trip in part since there was 
no layover facility to accommodate a mid-corridor start/end and therefore a mid-corridor 
start would have delayed the deployment of the 7th daily round trip. 

Having mid-corridor start/ends for the San Joaquins will be investigated as part of the 
schedule optimization work that will be done working with the State, BNSF and SMA, 
similar to what was just done in the LOSSAN Corridor.  It is possible that mid-corridor 
starts/ends could be part of a revised schedule to optimize the existing seven daily 
round trips of the San Joaquins.  Mid-corridor starts could be particularly attractive 
during week days when there is more opportunity to capture business travel (and these 
are the days that San Joaquins ridership is the lowest). 

Two locations were identified in the 2016 Business Plan: Merced and Fresno.  Staff 
recommends that the Board select Fresno as the preferred initial location for mid-
corridor starts/ends.  Fresno is the largest market for ridership for the San Joaquins and 
would enable a mid-corridor start/end to connect with HSR at the Madera station for 
service to Sacramento or to Oakland.  A San Joaquins train leaving Fresno today at 
4:30 am could reach Sacramento before 8:00 am; leaving Fresno by 4:00 am to reach 
Oakland by around 8:00 am.  Currently the first San Joaquins departs Bakersfield at 
4:25 am.    

This action would not preclude a future mid-corridor start or layover facility in Merced. 

 

Fiscal Impact: 

There is no fiscal impact of this action.    

37 of 85



Recommendation: 

Approve the attached resolution of the Governing Board of the San Joaquin Joint 
Powers Authority selecting Fresno as the Preferred Initial Location for Mid-Corridor 
Starts/Ends. 

 

38 of 85



SJJPA RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

Resolution of the Governing Board of the San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority 
Selecting Fresno as the Preferred Initial Location for Mid-Corridor Starts/Ends  

  
 WHEREAS, the 2016 Business Plan identifies the SJJPA’s strong interest in 
initiating the San Joaquins mid-corridor in order to enable the service to arrive at the 
end-points (Sacramento, Oakland, and Bakersfield) in the early morning hours, and   
  
 WHEREAS, two locations for mid-corridor start/ends were identified in the 2016 
Business Plan: Merced and Fresno, and  
 

WHEREAS, Fresno is the largest market for ridership for the San Joaquins and 
would enable a mid-corridor start/end to connect with HSR at the Madera station for 
service to Sacramento or to Oakland, and 

 
WHEREAS, this action would not preclude a future mid-corridor start or layover 

facility in Merced; 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOVLED by the Governing Board of the San 
Joaquin Joint Powers Authority selecting Fresno as the Preferred Initial Location for 
Mid-Corridor Starts/Ends.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the SJJPA on this 22th, day of July 2016, by the following 
vote:  
 
AYES:       
 
NOES:        
 
ABSENT:   
 
ABSTAIN: 
  
 
ATTEST:       SAN JOAQUIN JOINT    
                 POWERS AUTHORITY  

 
 
 

_______________________________  __________________________ 
STACEY MORTENSEN    JOHN PEDROZO, Chair 
Executive Director 
 

39 of 85



SAN JOAQUIN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

July 22, 2016 

 

STAFF REPORT 

Item 11  ACTION  

Approve Letters Supporting Transportation-Related Sales Tax Measures in 

Contra Costa, Stanislaus, and Merced Counties. 

 

Background: 

The Contra Costa Transportation Authority, Stanislaus Council of Governments, and 

Merced County Association of Governments are each trying to pass transportation sales 

tax measures November 2016.  Each of these measures would have a component for 

rail/transit which could be used to enhance San Joaquins stations, station areas, and 

connectivity to local and regional transit.  The Contra Costa Transportation Authority, 

Stanislaus Council of Governments, and Merced County Association of Governments 

are Member Agencies of the SJJPA.  

 

Fiscal Impact: 

There is no fiscal impact. 

 

Recommendation: 

Approve letters supporting transportation-related sales tax measures in Contra Costa, 

Stanislaus, and Merced Counties. 

 

40 of 85



DRAFT 

 

July 22, 2016 

 
Mr. Randell H. Iwasaki  
Executive Director  
Contra Costa Transportation Authority  
2999 Oak Road, #100 
Walnut Creek, CA 94597 

RE:  Support Letter for Transportation Sales Tax Measure 
 
Dear Mr. Iwasaki, 

The San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority would like to express our strong support for the 
transportation-related funding measure being placed on the November 2016 ballot in 
Contra Costa County, and the associated Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP) 
developed by the Contra Costa Transportation Authority.  

The SJJPA is pleased to see that the Expenditure Plan identifies new funding for 
improvements that will benefit the San Joaquin Rail Service and connecting services. It 
is critical to increase investment in rail and other transportation infrastructure given the 
mobility challenges faced by megaregion that links both the Bay Area and the San 
Joaquin Valley.   

The SJPPA is enthusiastic about joining all 19 cities and towns located with Contra 
Costa County in support of this sales tax measure and the TEP.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

John Pedrozo, Chair 
San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority 

41 of 85



DRAFT 

 

July 22, 2016 

 
Ms. Rosa De León Park  
Executive Director 
Stanislaus Council of Governments 
1111 I Street, #308 
Modesto, CA 95354 

RE:  Support Letter for Transportation Sales Tax Measure 

Dear Ms. Park, 

The San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority would like to express our strong support for the 
transportation-related, 25-year, half-cent sales tax measure being placed on the 
November 2016 ballot in Stanislaus County, and the associated Expenditure Plan 
developed by the Stanislaus Council of Governments.  

The SJJPA is pleased to see that the Expenditure Plan identifies new funding for 
improvements that will benefit the San Joaquin Rail Service and connecting services. It 
is critical to increase investment in rail and other transportation infrastructure given the 
mobility challenges faced by the San Joaquin Valley.   

The SJPPA is enthusiastic about joining the Stanislaus Council of Governments, all nine 
cities in the region, and the Stanislaus County Board of Supervisors in support of this 
sales tax measure and the Expenditure Plan.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

John Pedrozo, Chair 
San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority 

 

 

42 of 85



DRAFT 

 

July 22, 2016 

 
Ms. Marjie Kirn  
Executive Director  
Merced County Association of Governments 
369 W 18th St 
Merced, CA 95340 

RE:  Support Letter for Transportation Sales Tax Measure 

Dear Ms. Kirn, 

The San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority would like to express our strong support for the 
transportation-related, 30-year, half-cent sales tax measure being placed on the 
November 2016 ballot in Merced County, and the associated “Proposed 2016 1/2 
Transportation Sales Tax Measure Expenditure Plan” developed by the Merced County 
Association of Governments.  

The SJJPA is pleased to see that the Expenditure Plan identifies new funding for 
improvements that will benefit the San Joaquin Rail Service and connecting services. It 
is critical to increase investment in rail and other transportation infrastructure given the 
mobility challenges faced by the San Joaquin Valley.   

The SJPPA is enthusiastic about joining the Cities of Dos Palos, Gustine, Atwater, and 
Merced, as well as the County of Merced in support of this sales tax measure and the 
Expenditure Plan.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

John Pedrozo, Chair 
San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority 

 

 

 

43 of 85



SAN JOAQUIN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

July 22, 2016 

 

STAFF REPORT 

Item 12  ACTION  

Approve Revisions to SJJPA Marketing and Outreach Plan for Fiscal Year 2016/17 

Background: 

SJJPA adopted its “Marketing and Outreach Plan” at the November 20, 2015 Board 

Meeting.  Contracts for grassroots marketing and outreach, advertising and graphics 

identified in the Marketing and Outreach Plan were approved at the January 29, 2016 

and March 25, 2016 Board Meetings.  On May 27, 2016 several revisions were 

approved by the SJJPA board to the Marketing and Outreach Plan pertaining to the 

budget for Fiscal Year 2015/16. The intention of these changes was to allow SJJPA to 

utilize the existing marketing and outreach contractors for social media coordination and 

advertising, as that is more efficient than having SJJPA staff hire additional consultants 

to undertake these activities.   

There is a need to do a similar change to the Marketing and Outreach Plan for FY 

2016/17. Please see the attached recommended “SJJPA Marketing and Outreach Plan 

Revisions for FY 2016/17.”  These changes do not substantially change the plan, but 

are a more effective and efficient way to carry out the work than had been originally 

planned.   

The changes being proposed are as follows: 

 Move the $60,000 set aside for the “Social Media” line item to Central San 

Joaquin Valley Region.  This will enable Jeffrey Scott Agency to continue their 

work to manage the entire social media effort, which includes coordinating all 

content from the five regions. To-date, JSA has done an excellent job in 

establishing a highly professional social media effort, and staff wants to ensure 

this effort continues given the tremendous value social media provides.  

 Move $38,000 of the $50,000 set aside for “Promotional Items” line item to 

Central San Joaquin Valley Region. The SJJPA is still working with Caltrans and 

CalSTA to get approval from the Governor’s Office to be able to use State funds 

for promotional items.  If approval is granted, then JSA will be responsible for 

purchasing promotional items for all of the marketing and outreach contracts.  If 

approval is not granted during the fiscal year, these funds could be used for 

additional social media efforts and advertising in the San Joaquin Valley. 

44 of 85



 Reallocate the remaining $12,000 of the $50,000 set aside for “Promotional 

Items” line item to Kern County Region for additional grassroots marketing and 

outreach.  The current budget has only $60,000 ($5,000/month) for this region.   

 Reallocate $12,000 of the $62,000 from the “Advertising” line item to the Bay 

Area Region so CirclePoint can continue their effort to provide an advertising 

effort in the Bay Area – which began as part of the amendment given to them in 

FY 2015/16.  The larger advertising effort by Sagent has been focused on the 

San Joaquin Valley and Sacramento area.  

 

Fiscal Impact: 

There is no fiscal impact to the SJJPA.  This action would enable a more efficient use of 

resources utilizing existing consulting teams and would enable SJJPA to fully utilize the 

resources allocated to SJJPA for marketing and outreach for FY 2015/16. 

 

Recommendation: 

Approve the attached SJJPA Marketing and Outreach Plan Budget for FY 2016/17:  

Recommended Revised FY 2016/17.   

 

45 of 85



SJJPA Marketing and Outreach Plan Revisions  

For Fiscal Year 2016/17  
 

Marketing and Outreach Plan Budget for FY 2016/17  

Current FY 2016/17: 
 
Grassroots Marketing and Outreach Contracts (12 months) = $672,000 
• Bay Area at $12,000/month = $144,000 
• Sacramento Area & Northern CA at $10,000/month = $120,000 
• Northern San Joaquin Valley at $12,000/month = $144,000 
• Central San Joaquin Valley at $17,000/month = $204,000 
• Kern County at $5,000/month = $60,000 

SJJPA Administrative Support = $66,000 
Promotional Items = $50,000 
Advertising: $62,000 
Social Media: $60,000 
Graphics + Materials: $80,000 
Website: $10,000 

TOTAL = $1,000,000 

 
Recommended Revised FY 2016/17:   
 
Grassroots Marketing and Outreach Contracts = $794,000  
• Bay Area at $12,000/month = $144,000 + $12,000 (advertising) = $156,000 
• Sacramento Area & Northern CA at $10,000/month = $120,000 
• Northern San Joaquin Valley at $12,000/month = $144,000 
• Central SJV at $17,000/month = $204,000 + $60,000 (social media) + $38,000 

(promotional items) = $302,000 
• Kern County at $6,000/month = $60,000 + $12,000 = $72,000 

SJJPA Administrative Support = $66,000 
Promotional Items = $50,000 
Advertising: $50,000 
Social Media: $60,000 
Graphics + Materials: $80,000 
Website: $10,000  
TOTAL = $1,000,000           

46 of 85



SAN JOAQUIN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
July 22, 2016 

 
STAFF REPORT 

Item 13  INFORMATION  

Update on Marketing and Outreach Associated with the 7th Daily Round-Trip 

Staff will present an update on the marketing and outreach efforts associated with the 
launch of Amtrak San Joaquins 7th Daily Round-Trip.  

SJJPA implemented a multi-media advertising effort to promote the 7th Daily Round-Trip 
with Sagent - advertising firm. The media mix included: radio (English and Spanish), 
digital, print, and billboards. The digital component included the following products: paid 
search, pre-roll video display, display ads, Facebook, and digital partnerships with print 
partners Fresno Bee, Merced Sun Star, and Central Valley Business Journal. The 
content ran from June 13th – 30th. Additional advertising has been secured for the 
months of July and August, including movie theatre advertising. 

SJJPA is utilizing its Social Media channels to promote the 7th Daily with posts on 
Facebook, Instragram, Twitter, and Youtube. SJJPA has leveraged its outreach teams 
to grow the ‘Stakeholder’ and ‘General Interest’ email lists. A 7th Daily E-Blast was 
designed and sent to these lists. 

Along with the Outreach Teams, SJJPA organized four regional press conferences to 
promote the launch of the 7th Daily. Press conferences were held in Bakersfield, Fresno, 
Merced, and Oakland. The press conferences were an opportunity to partner with local 
stakeholders to grow the SJJPA network and promote the service via local media. 
Media content from the press conferences included TV, radio, print, digital and social. 

See attached list of 7th Daily Round-Trip media coverage with links provided to the 
stories. Also, attached are images of 7th Daily Round-Trip advertising materials and 
photos from the four press conference. 

See Item 16 – Administrative Items – for press release and media clippings. 

 

Recommendation: 

This is an informational item.  There is no action requested. 

47 of 85



7th Daily Media Coverage 
 

Date Publication Link 

6/14/2016 Central Valley Business Times http://www.centralvalleybusinesstimes.com/stories/001/?ID=30717 

6/16/2016 KUZZ Radio https://www.dropbox.com/s/1ifcu7dokizhb7u/KUZZ.mp3?dl=0  

6/16/2016 KERO 23 http://www.turnto23.com/news/local-news/new-trip-added-to-amtrack-route-061616 

6/17/2016 KBAK/KBFX http://bakersfieldnow.com/news/local/amtrak-expands-service-between-bakersfield-and-oakland 

6/17/2016 KBAK/KBFX https://www.dropbox.com/s/5jv7fs89w8pq6zl/KBAK.mpg?dl=0 

6/17/2016 KERO 23 http://www.turnto23.com/news/local-news/another-option-for-amtrak-riders  

6/17/2016 KGET https://www.dropbox.com/s/fbwklxkjzlf5weu/KGET.mpg?dl=0  

6/17/2016 Merced Sun-Star http://www.mercedsunstar.com/news/article84560622.html 

6/17/2016 Modesto Bee http://www.modbee.com/news/article84514462.html 

6/19/2016 Stockton Record http://www.recordnet.com/article/20160618/NEWS/160619738 

6/19/2016 SFGate http://www.sfgate.com/news/bayarea/article/Amtrak-Adds-Daily-Roundtrip-Service-Between-
8311908.php 

6/19/2016 Central Valley Business Journal http://cvbj.biz/2016/06/19/amtrak-adds-additional-daily-trip-san-joaquins-route/ 

6/19/2016 Bay City News https://sfbay.ca/2016/06/19/amtrak-boosts-daily-service-to-central-valley/ 

6/20/2016 The Business Journal http://www.thebusinessjournal.com/news/transportation/22918-amtrak-adds-new-7th-daily-
round-trip-through-valley  

6/20/2016 Fresno Bee http://www.fresnobee.com/news/local/article84917817.html 

6/20/2016 Richmond Standard http://richmondstandard.com/2016/06/richmond-mayor-praises-amtrak-service-expansion/  

6/20/2016 KFSN/ABC30 http://abc30.com/travel/first-amtrak-expansion-in-14-years-gives-travelers-a-faster-round-trip-to-
oakland-from-bakersfield/1393889/ 

6/20/2016 Valley Voice http://www.ourvalleyvoice.com/2016/06/20/amtrak-san-joaquin-adds-daily-round-trip/  

6/20/2016 East Bay Times http://www.eastbaytimes.com/breaking-news/ci_30037605/central-valley-population-soaring-
amtrak-adds-expanded-service?source=rss  

6/21/2016 Sound of Hope Radio FM 96.1 http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/bayarea/2016/06/21/672057.htm 

6/21/2016 Mass Transit http://www.masstransitmag.com/news/12222949/amtrak-adds-seventh-train-through-fresno-
valley 

6/22/2016 The Madera Tribune http://www.maderatribune.com/single-post/2016/06/22/Amtrak-opens-new-train 

 
See Item 16 – Administrative Items – for press releases and media clippings. 

  

48 of 85

http://www.centralvalleybusinesstimes.com/stories/001/?ID=30717
https://www.dropbox.com/s/1ifcu7dokizhb7u/KUZZ.mp3?dl=0
http://www.turnto23.com/news/local-news/new-trip-added-to-amtrack-route-061616
http://bakersfieldnow.com/news/local/amtrak-expands-service-between-bakersfield-and-oakland
http://www.dropbox.com/s/5jv7fs89w8pq6zl/KBAK.mpg?dl=0
http://www.turnto23.com/news/local-news/another-option-for-amtrak-riders
https://www.dropbox.com/s/fbwklxkjzlf5weu/KGET.mpg?dl=0
http://www.mercedsunstar.com/news/article84560622.html
http://www.modbee.com/news/article84514462.html
http://www.recordnet.com/article/20160618/NEWS/160619738
http://www.sfgate.com/news/bayarea/article/Amtrak-Adds-Daily-Roundtrip-Service-Between-8311908.php
http://www.sfgate.com/news/bayarea/article/Amtrak-Adds-Daily-Roundtrip-Service-Between-8311908.php
http://cvbj.biz/2016/06/19/amtrak-adds-additional-daily-trip-san-joaquins-route/
http://www.thebusinessjournal.com/news/transportation/22918-amtrak-adds-new-7th-daily-round-trip-through-valley
http://www.thebusinessjournal.com/news/transportation/22918-amtrak-adds-new-7th-daily-round-trip-through-valley
http://www.fresnobee.com/news/local/article84917817.html
http://richmondstandard.com/2016/06/richmond-mayor-praises-amtrak-service-expansion/
http://abc30.com/travel/first-amtrak-expansion-in-14-years-gives-travelers-a-faster-round-trip-to-oakland-from-bakersfield/1393889/
http://abc30.com/travel/first-amtrak-expansion-in-14-years-gives-travelers-a-faster-round-trip-to-oakland-from-bakersfield/1393889/
http://www.ourvalleyvoice.com/2016/06/20/amtrak-san-joaquin-adds-daily-round-trip/
http://www.eastbaytimes.com/breaking-news/ci_30037605/central-valley-population-soaring-amtrak-adds-expanded-service?source=rss
http://www.eastbaytimes.com/breaking-news/ci_30037605/central-valley-population-soaring-amtrak-adds-expanded-service?source=rss
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/bayarea/2016/06/21/672057.htm
http://www.maderatribune.com/single-post/2016/06/22/Amtrak-opens-new-train


Images of SJJPA 7th Daily Round-Trip Materials 

 

7th Daily Bakersfield Advertisement 

 
 

49 of 85



7th Daily Fresno / Merced Advertisement 

 

 
 

50 of 85



7th Daily Ribbon Print Advertisement 

 

 

 

7th Digital Advertisements 

         

 

 

 

 

 

 

51 of 85



7th Digital Advertisements 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
52 of 85



7th Facebook Posts 

 

 
 

7th Daily Youtube Pre-Roll 

 

 
53 of 85



7th Daily E-Blast 

 

  

54 of 85



Bakersfield Press Conference – June 17, 2016 

 

 
Assemblymember Rudy Salas 

 

 

 

 
Daniel Krause Interviewed by Local TV News 

Networks 

 
From Left to Right - Daniel Krause, David 
Lyman, Nick Ortiz, Rudy Salas, Richard 
Chapman, Cheryl Wegman – Speakers at 
Bakersfield Press Conference 
 
 

 
 

Crowd at Bakersfield Press Conference 

 
 

  

55 of 85



Merced Press Conference – June 17, 2016 
 

 
Congressman Jim Costa 

 

 
Assemblymember Anthony Cannella 

 

 
Assemblymember Adam Gray 

 

 
Supervisor John Pedrozo, Chair of SJJPA 

 

 
Supervisor Vito Chiesa, Board Member of SJJPA 

 

 
Crowd at Merced Press Conference 

 
 

 
 
 
 

56 of 85



Fresno Press Conference – June 20, 2016 
 

 
Supervisor Henry Perea, Vice Chair of SJJPA 

 

 
Supervisor Doug Verboon, Board Member of SJJPA 

 

 
Supervisor Brett Frazier, Board Member of SJJPA 

 
Fresno City Councilwoman Esmeralda Soria 

 

 
Kings County Economic Development Corporation 

President & CEO John Lehn 

 
Crowd at Fresno Press Conference 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

57 of 85



Oakland Press Conference – June 20, 2016 
 

 
Tom Blalock, Board Member of SJJPA 

 
 

 
Jeff Snowden, Amtrak Senior Regional Director, 

State Supported Corridors – West 

 

 
Jim Wunderman, President/CEO of the Bay Area 

Council 
 

Matt Nichols, Transportation Policy Director for the 
City of Oakland

 
 

 
 

58 of 85



SAN JOAQUIN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
July 22, 2016 

 
STAFF REPORT 

Item 14  INFORMATION 

Update from Bay Area Region Marketing and Outreach Team 
 

Background: 

As identified in the SJJPA’s approved Marketing and Outreach Plan, a key to the 
success of the SJJPA’s marketing approach is the hiring of small businesses and/or 
individuals who are active in community issues to carry out grassroots, community 
based outreach throughout the San Joaquin Corridor.  At the March 25, 2016 SJJPA 
Board Meeting the SJJPA approved the staff recommendation to select Circlepoint to 
carry out marketing and outreach activities in the Bay Area Region.    

Circlepoint will introduce their team, describe their work program and highlight the work 
they have done to date and upcoming efforts.   

 
Recommendation: 

This is an informational item.  There is no action requested. 

 

59 of 85



SAN JOAQUIN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
July 22, 2016 

 
STAFF REPORT 

Item 15  INFORMATION  

Food Service Update 
 

Background: 

Food service on the Amtrak San Joaquins is an important part of the passenger 
experience. The quality of food service is particularly critical for the San Joaquins given 
that passengers often ride on San Joaquin trains for several hours. This item is an 
update of the current food service, as well as initial activities being undertaken by staff 
to ensure our passengers find the food service a good experience.    

The menu currently on trains will be updated August 3rd, 2016. Currently one food menu 
is shared by both the San Joaquins and the Capitol Corridor services. However, 
trainsets utilized by the Capitol Corridor are generally separate from the ones the San 
Joaquins utilize, which allows for the possibility of customizing the menu for the San 
Joaquins. Given the San Joaquins’ market of riders is different than the Capitols, staff is 
currently exploring the development of a menu customized for the San Joaquins.  

As part of the development of a new menu, staff suggests highlighting food from San 
Joaquin Valley. Not only could more local products be available to our passengers, this 
can help emphasize the SJJPA as a partner in promoting the San Joaquin Valley 
economy.  Also, this opens up the possibility of using food as a way to promote Agri-
tourism in the San Joaquin Valley. 

Staff is also working with Amtrak to improve onboard announcements regarding the 
availability of food and beverages at the café on each trainset.  This is not being done 
consistently.  Additionally, staff is exploring general promotion of food service at stations 
and online.  

As part of these efforts to improve promotion, staff is looking into ways to increase sales 
of food items and reduce waste and spoilage. Staff will investigate offering discounts 
and specials on food items, especially as they get close to expiring (often toward the 
end of the day) to help sell out the inventory. This can help to promote food service 
generally, as this will require additional onboard announcements. Additionally, staff 
plans to work with Amtrak and the Marketing and Outreach teams to organize special 
food events/activities onboard, including wine tastings, etc.  

60 of 85



Staff is reviewing recent data regarding food sales, spoilage rates, etc. to determine 
how to reduce losses and how to get closer to breaking even on food service. The goal 
is to optimize what is offered by determining the top selling and most profitable items, as 
well as identifying items that are not selling well or ones with high spoilage rates.   

 

Fiscal Impact: 

There is no fiscal impact of this item.   

 

Recommendation: 

This is an informational item.  There is no action requested. 

61 of 85



SAN JOAQUIN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
July 22, 2016 

 
STAFF REPORT 

Item 16    INFORMATION 

Executive Director’s Report 

Update on progress regarding the Amtrak contract and other matters. 

 

Recommendation: 

There is no action being requested. 
 
 
 

62 of 85



SAN JOAQUIN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
July 22, 2016 

 
STAFF REPORT 

Item 17  INFORMATION 

Administrative Matters 

Correspondence and Announcements: 

SJJPA staff participated in press conferences held on June 17 in Merced and 
Bakersfield  on June 20 in Fresno and Oakland to celebrate the deployment of the San 
Joaquins 7th daily round trip.  Press releases and related media stories are attached 
along with examples of media coverage from these events. 
 
SJJPA staff participated in events held on June 28 in Oakland and on June 30 in 
Sacramento to announce the release of the Northern California MegaRegion Study 
done by the Bay Area Council Economic Institute.  Press releases and related media 
stories are attached along with examples of media coverage from the release of this 
study. 
 
See attached Facebook correspondence between Melissa Moore Shank (beginning 
6/29/2016) and SJJPA regarding misinformation about Café Car availability from call 
center (1-800-USA-RAIL).  

 

Recommendation: 

There is no action being requested. 

 

63 of 85



AMTRAK SAN JOAQUINS ADDS NEW 7TH DAILY ROUND-TRIP 
First Expansion of Service in over 14 Years for the San Joaquins 
 

STOCKTON – Amtrak San Joaquins will inaugurate their 7th Daily Round-Trip on June 20, 2016.  The additional daily 
round-trip train service is being added between Bakersfield and Oakland’s Jack London Square Station -- making it more 
convenient for passengers to travel between the Bay Area, San Joaquin Valley cities, and other destinations throughout 
California.  
 
“As the communities of the San Joaquin Valley continue to grow, we must meet their needs by striving to offer additional 
train service along the corridor,” said Merced County Supervisor John Pedrozo, Chair of the San Joaquin Joint Powers 
Authority (SJJPA). “Riders need frequent, convenient scheduling options to choose from in order to incorporate train travel 
into their business or leisure trips. Adding another daily round-trip will improve Amtrak San Joaquin’s connection between 
the Bay Area and the San Joaquin Valley.” 
 
This is the first expansion of train service on the San Joaquins in over 14 years. The route between the Bay Area and the 
San Joaquin Valley has not had an increase in service in over 23 years. The new round-trip offers an earlier morning 
northbound option and an afternoon southbound option. The new 709 morning train departs Bakersfield at 4:25 a.m., 
Fresno 6:18 a.m., Stockton (San Joaquin Street Station) 8:33 a.m. and arrives in Oakland at 10:26 a.m. The new 708 
afternoon train departs Oakland at 2:30 p.m., Stockton (San Joaquin Street Station) 4:21 p.m.; Fresno 6:34 p.m. and 
arrives Bakersfield at 8:46 p.m. 
 
Enhancing service on the Amtrak San Joaquins line was recognized by TRIP, a national transportation research group, as 
one of the state’s top priorities for transportation improvement and investment.  TRIP’s recent report, “Project Green Light: 
Moving California’s Critical Transportation Improvements Forward,” highlighted this project as one that would improve the 
quality of life for California residents, spur and enhance economic growth and competitiveness, and encourage job 
growth. 
 
“With population increases and a growing economy, we need more options to get drivers off congested roads,” said 
Lafayette City Council Member Don Tatzin, Vice Chair of the SJJPA, “As people travel for work or play between the Bay 
Area and the San Joaquin Valley, the Amtrak San Joaquins line offers a way to avoid traffic, help the environment, and 
travel comfortably and safely. I’m so glad the additional daily round-trip is coming online now to make the train a 
convenient option for even more riders.” 
 
The San Joaquins is Amtrak’s 5th busiest route with 365 miles of track, 18 stations, 1.1 million annual riders and provides 
a safe, comfortable, reliable way to travel throughout California. With the new 7th daily round-trip, the San Joaquins now 
has 5 daily trips between Bakersfield and Oakland and 2 daily round-trips between Bakersfield and Sacramento. In 
addition to the train service, Amtrak San Joaquins Thruway buses provide connecting service to 135 destinations in 
California and Nevada including Los Angeles, Santa Barbara, San Diego, Napa Valley, Las Vegas and Reno. 
 
The San Joaquins feature comfortable seating and offer a wide variety of amenities including electrical outlets at each 
row, complimentary AmtrakConnectSM Wi-Fi, an on board Café Car offering seasonal sandwiches, snacks and beverages, 
bike racks and much more. 
 
Amtrak San Joaquins offers a number of discounts to its riders including senior, student, and veteran discounts as well as 
a new ‘Friends and Family’ discount. To book your next trip, visit www.AmtrakSanJoaquins.com or call 1-800-USA-RAIL.   

#    #     # 

64 of 85

http://www.amtraksanjoaquins.com/


65 of 85



Amtrak adds new daily trip for San Joaquins route  Central
Valley Business Journal

June 19, 2016

MERCED — For the first time in 14 years, Amtrak passengers on the San Joaquins route  have an additional
daily trip on the schedule to choose from.

Amtrak added a seventh daily round trip starting June 20 with the aim of making it more convenient to travel by
rail between the San Joaquin Valley and the Bay Area.  The additional train provides an earlier morning
northbound option and a new option for southbound afternoon passengers.

The San Joaquins route now has five trains traveling daily between Bakersfield and Oakland and two daily trips
between Bakersfield and Sacramento.

Now, a passenger can leave from Stockton, for example, at 8:33 a.m. and arrive in Oakland at 10:26 a.m.
Previously, the earliest Amtrak train arrived in Oakland at 2:01 p.m.

Members of the San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority, which plays a major role in managing Valley rail service,
celebrated the addition at ceremonies throughout the Valley. The San Joaquins line is Amtrak’s fifth busiest
route with 365 miles of track between Bakersfield and Oakland, 18 stations and more than 1 million passengers
a year. Members said the additional daily trip was needed for leisure and business travelers.

“Riders need reliable, frequent scheduling,” said Merced County Supervisor John Pedrozo, chairman of the
Authority.

Amtrak train on the San Joaquin Corridor route.

66 of 85



Amtrak is a popular option for business travelers who use it to get from the Valley to Sacramento or the Bay
Area. The hours spent traveling can be used productively rather than just getting through traffic.

“On our trains, you can have a meeting around tables,” said San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority Manager of
Regional Initiatives Dan Leavitt. “Even if you’re by yourself, you can get your WiFi. You can be doing productive
work on the train.”

With California’s population expected to reach 50 million in the next few decades, transportation will be an even
bigger challenge than it is now, according to Rep. Jim Costa, R-Merced. That means doing more than simply
building more roads.

“We can’t do this with just auto traffic alone,” Costa said.

Costa said people rely on cars to travel less than 100 miles and airplanes for trips of 400 miles or more. He
called the 100-400-mile travel sector the “sweet spot” for rail.

Stanislaus County Supervisor Vito Chiesa, a member of the Authority, said Amtrak is one piece of a strategy for
transportation in the San Joaquin Valley that includes roads, air travel and other forms of rail, such as BART
and ACE.

“As a part of a managed portfolio, you have to have roadways, you have to have rail, you have to have buses,
you have to have airports,” he said. “And so, trying to do that in balance is really what we’re tasked with as local
elected officials.”

The key to making it work is to have rail and bus services synced so that when passengers get off at a train
station in a city, there are buses there to take them closer to their final destinations.

Chiesa is familiar with Amtrak service because he rides it frequently.

“My son attends attends Cal State University Bakersfield, and so I take the train down there every time unless
I’m headed to LA or somewhere else,” he said. “I ride a lot to Sacramento or down to Bakersfield. It is extremely
convenient. I can sit and get work done. They’ve got WiFi. If I feel like it, I can have a beer with no worries. It’s
fantastic.”

TRIP, a national transportation research group, ranked Amtrak’s San Joaquins line 11th on its list of California’s
top 20 priorities for transportation improvements outside the state’s biggest urban areas. The ranking appeared
in its Project Green Light report released in May. In addition to adding trains, TRIP recommended track and
signal improvements.

Leavitt said those improvements are expected this year. In fact, he said, more Amtrak trains can’t be scheduled
until more double-track sections are added to the line it shares with BNSF freight trains. Those sections allow
trains to pull aside to allow another train to go through.

“A lot of the line is single-track,” said Leavitt. “So for us to run more service, we have have to add in additional
double-track sections, and then we want to make sure when our trains are running that they meet at those
double track lines. That way we don’t create interference for the freight.”

67 of 85



Amtrak boosts daily service to Central Valley

Share
Bay City News
PUBLISHED
June 19, 2016
12:07 pm
Amtrak officials announced an additional roundtrip train service between Oakland’s Jack London Square and
Bakersfield will be added Monday, making it Amtrak San Joaquin’s seventh daily roundtrip service.

The service is intended to make travel between the Bay Area and the San Joaquin Valley more convenient for
passengers, according to Amtrak officials. Trips from Bakersfield to and from San Francisco generally take
between six and seven hours, depending on stops and time of day.

With a growing population and increased congestion on roadways, it was a critical investment to add the
seventh trip in their transportation system, Amtrak officials said.

Transportation and Oakland city officials are expected to hold a news conference Monday at the Jack London
Square station, located at 245 Second St., at 10 a.m. to discuss the new service.

Share this story

68 of 85

https://www.amtrak.com/ccurl/529/72/San-Joaquins-Schedule-062016.pdf


Amtrak adds seventh train through Fresno, Valley

Early northbound train reaches Oakland by mid-morning

Southbound train from Oakland fills afternoon schedule gap

Improved connections for both business and leisure travelers

Amtrak San Joaquin train service expansion 1:30
1 of 2
Fresno and Valley leaders talk about the benefits of adding a seventh daily round trip on Amtrak's San Joaquin
passenger train service. The new train began operating on June 20, 2016. Video by Fresno Bee reporter Tim
Sheehan. tsheehan@fresnobee.com
By Tim Sheehan

69 of 85



There is a new Amtrak passenger train rumbling through the San Joaquin Valley, providing a morning
northbound option to the San Francisco Bay Area and a southbound train filling an afternoon schedule gap – a
combination that Valley leaders hope will attract more day-trip business and pleasure travelers to the route.

Both the Amtrak San Joaquin 709, a northbound train from Bakersfield to Oakland, and the 708, a southbound
train from Oakland to Bakersfield, began operations on Monday.

Their launch culminates several years of effort by the San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority, a 10-county agency
that took over administrative oversight of the route from the California Department of Transportation.

The San Joaquin route is Amtrak’s sixth-busiest train route in the nation. In 2014-15, the San Joaquins – six
northbound trains, six southbound – carried almost 1.2 million passengers. During that fiscal year, the Fresno
Amtrak station was the second-busiest behind Bakersfield on the San Joaquin line with almost 390,000
passengers boarding and alighting from trains.

ADVERTISING
The extra round trip means seven trains northbound and seven southbound every day.

“There are times when you think, ‘I’ll just have to jump in my car because the times don’t work for me,’ ” said
Madera County Supervisor Brett Frazier, who serves on the joint powers board. “Expanding these services
allows us to get there on our time. That’s when people start taking public transportation and riding the train,
when it works into their schedule.”

Henry R. Perea, a Fresno County supervisor who is vice chairman of the joint powers board, said the additional
round trip “is the first expansion of the train service in the San Joaquins in more than 14 years.”

Leaders of the joint authority also touted a new “friends and family” discount ticket program for the San Joaquin
trains. When an adult traveler buys one full-fare ticket, they can buy up to five more tickets for the same trip at
half price. The program is intended to ease the cost for families or groups of business colleagues to travel on
the train.

Dan Leavitt, manager of regional initiatives for the San Joaquin joint powers agency, said the additional train
means adding more buses for the connections at both Stockton and Bakersfield for passengers continuing on to
Sacramento or Los Angeles.

The next logical step is to add more train service to Sacramento, Leavitt said. “We only have two daily round
trips currently, but there’s a big market to Sacramento and we want to get more trains to Sacramento,” he said.
“Plus, we also want to be able to get passengers there in the early morning hours so they can take business
trips and other trips back and forth to Sacramento.”

In the meantime, Leavitt said the agency is changing the weekday schedule of the two daily Sacramento trains
“and get those into Sacramento earlier so they’d be better-suited to business travelers.”

Tim Sheehan: 559-441-6319, @TimSheehanNews

70 of 85

https://www.amtrak.com/home
http://www.sjjpa.com/
https://www.amtrak.com/san-joaquin-train
https://www.amtrak.com/san-joaquin-friends-and-family-companion-fares
tel:559-441-6319
https://twitter.com/TimSheehanNews


71 of 85



收藏本站  设为首页  全站导航  旧版网站  旧版节目 正體  简体  2016年7月12日 星期二

繁体版[字号] 大 中 小

Amtrak庆祝加开奥克兰到中谷的班车

2016-06-21 来源: 希望之声广播电台

   

国家铁路客运公司Amtrak宣布，从6月20日

(星期一)开始, 圣华金线路增加一趟每天

往返车次，这趟列车连接东湾奥克兰和中

谷贝克斯菲尔德（Bakersfield）。这是

Amtrak 14年以来第一次增加班次。

 

6月20日，Amtrak 在奥克兰的杰克伦敦广场车站举行仪式，庆祝从东湾奥克兰到加州中部的

Bakersfield 每天加开一列火车，这是Amtrak圣华金线路的第七趟每天往返车次。

新增加的班次使得从Bakersfield出发的乘客，在早上10:26就可以抵达奥克兰。Amtrak圣华

金线路市场协调人David Lipari说，加开这趟班次的目的是为了提供乘客更方便的日程表。

小编推荐

热门推荐

首页 / 新闻 / 湾区新闻 即时快讯:

 

首页 购物 新闻 湾区生活杂志 电台节目 节目表 Fun眼看 养生网 文史网 中国观察关于我们 活动

重要消息: 关键字: 陈俊旭专栏    SCA-5专题

奥巴马要求白宫降半旗 悼念遇害警察

Like 3.5K 0Share

00:00 00:00

亚马逊减价日来临 有4招让你省
钱又省力

1

美国加州听到多次神秘巨响 难
倒专家(图)

2

捂住腰子，苹果把所有惊艳都留
给了iPhone 8!(图)

3

美加州弗雷斯诺县发现首例寨卡
病毒感染

4

台铁松山站爆炸 21伤 1重伤或
毁容(视频)

5

Hayward修复路边裂缝 毁坏现实
地震实验室

6

师资短缺 旧金山提供签约奖金 7
全国最生气的搞笑名字, 亏他爸
妈想的出来! 组图

8

脱欧恐慌持续 金价冲至2年高点 9
硅谷科技快报─2016年7月7日 10

从孩子的表现看父母的缺点 震惊很
多人

1

除购物外 Costco还有6个你不知道
的福利

2

宋慧乔裙子太短 宋仲基为其盖毛毯
防走光 组图

3

五大坑人小家电 !! 买了必后悔的
! 你中招了吗 ???

4

到Costco 别忘了买10种物超所值的
商品

5

未来4年恐爆发的10场战争 中国包
办3名

6

ISIS曝死亡名单 要杀7848名美国平
民 华人也上榜

7

72 of 85

http://sfshow.bayvoice.net/gb/donate-car
http://sfshow.bayvoice.net/gb/advertise-with-us
javascript:;
javascript:;
javascript:;
http://old.bayvoice.net/home.html
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/popular-programs
http://www.facebook.com/bayvoice.net
https://twitter.com/bayvoice2011
https://plus.google.com/105572504567228078842/posts
http://www.bayvoice.net/b5/news/bayarea/2016/06/21/672057.htmamtrak%E6%85%B6%E7%A5%9D%E5%8A%A0%E9%96%8B%E5%A5%A7%E5%85%8B%E8%98%AD%E5%88%B0%E4%B8%AD%E8%B0%B7%E7%9A%84%E7%8F%AD%E8%BB%8A.html
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/bayarea/2016/06/21/672057.htmamtrak%E5%BA%86%E7%A5%9D%E5%8A%A0%E5%BC%80%E5%A5%A5%E5%85%8B%E5%85%B0%E5%88%B0%E4%B8%AD%E8%B0%B7%E7%9A%84%E7%8F%AD%E8%BD%A6.html
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/bayarea/2016/06/21/672057.htmamtrak%e5%ba%86%e7%a5%9d%e5%8a%a0%e5%bc%80%e5%a5%a5%e5%85%8b%e5%85%b0%e5%88%b0%e4%b8%ad%e8%b0%b7%e7%9a%84%e7%8f%ad%e8%bd%a6.html/print/
http://www.bayvoice.net/b5/news/bayarea/2016/06/21/672057.htmamtrak%E6%85%B6%E7%A5%9D%E5%8A%A0%E9%96%8B%E5%A5%A7%E5%85%8B%E8%98%AD%E5%88%B0%E4%B8%AD%E8%B0%B7%E7%9A%84%E7%8F%AD%E8%BB%8A.html
javascript:;
javascript:;
javascript:;
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=CFsC7yiGFV6WNJJX4iQOzz6aYDta1y6UHtqja0bYC5ordkdsEEAEgldvjH2DJnv6GyKP8GqABrszV_gPIAQLgAgCoAwHIA5kEqgS6AU_QOZHPfH7o7BUrNYYJA8hZlGgH7i81fDiOnpxLF-cF81qVliZGH3mFLjCN9ziu_HEM_W9xZUUhJuLmlgLR47dMiASlwUOdhJoQLRytZdQApT8S2jND1poGt17e0W_J91ZOdjbSVZii1bicyF0xKEm5Ao2fDydAgTX2RqYp3zfEFHtjFlHmhqbq3Ok5EuehHkd6Q98-pvo76uoaAmQUBim4teTvMra53WGdZ1TiUDCEfpw8-2pBk69W3eAEAYgGAaAGAoAHurOqAagHpr4b2AcB&num=1&cid=CAASEuRoRelCBiSOeHLwKrw_DLq8AQ&sig=AOD64_0nYXoqrQk1rvxfc_sjckadSDHrmw&client=ca-pub-5016313349647762&adurl=https://www.kentico.com/specials/campaigns/gleansterwcm%3Futm_source%3Dgoogle%26utm_medium%3Dcpc%26utm_campaign%3DG_Remarketing_Rare_Gleanster
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/bayarea
http://www.bayvoice.net/
http://sfshow.bayvoice.net/gb/talkshowc
http://www.bayvoice.net/
http://www.bayvoice.net/shopping
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/bay-life-magazine
http://sfshow.bayvoice.net/
http://sfshow.bayvoice.net/gb/about-us/program-schedule
http://funlook.bayvoice.net/
http://healthy.bayvoice.net/
http://history.bayvoice.net/
http://chinaexaminer.bayvoice.net/
http://sfshow.bayvoice.net/gb/about-us
http://event.bayvoice.net/
http://sfshow.bayvoice.net/gb/guests/dr-chen
http://sfshow.bayvoice.net/gb/topic/casca5
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/2016/07/08/681131.htm%e5%a5%a5%e5%b7%b4%e9%a9%ac%e8%a6%81%e6%b1%82%e7%99%bd%e5%ae%ab%e9%99%8d%e5%8d%8a%e6%97%97-%e6%82%bc%e5%bf%b5%e9%81%87%e5%ae%b3%e8%ad%a6%e5%af%9f.html
https://www.facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?sdk=joey&u=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bayvoice.net%2Fgb%2Fnews%2Fbayarea%2F2016%2F06%2F21%2F672057.htmamtrak%25e5%25ba%2586%25e7%25a5%259d%25e5%258a%25a0%25e5%25bc%2580%25e5%25a5%25a5%25e5%2585%258b%25e5%2585%25b0%25e5%2588%25b0%25e4%25b8%25ad%25e8%25b0%25b7%25e7%259a%2584%25e7%258f%25ad%25e8%25bd%25a6.html&display=popup&ref=plugin&src=share_button
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/lifetips/2016/07/07/680427.htm%e4%ba%9a%e9%a9%ac%e9%80%8a%e5%87%8f%e4%bb%b7%e6%97%a5%e6%9d%a5%e4%b8%b4-%e6%9c%894%e6%8b%9b%e8%ae%a9%e4%bd%a0%e7%9c%81%e9%92%b1%e5%8f%88%e7%9c%81%e5%8a%9b.html
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/bayarea/2016/07/07/680351.htm%e7%be%8e%e5%9b%bd%e5%8a%a0%e5%b7%9e%e5%90%ac%e5%88%b0%e5%a4%9a%e6%ac%a1%e7%a5%9e%e7%a7%98%e5%b7%a8%e5%93%8d-%e9%9a%be%e5%80%92%e4%b8%93%e5%ae%b6%e5%9b%be.html
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/tech/2016/07/07/680398.htm%e6%8d%82%e4%bd%8f%e8%85%b0%e5%ad%90%ef%bc%8c%e8%8b%b9%e6%9e%9c%e6%8a%8a%e6%89%80%e6%9c%89%e6%83%8a%e8%89%b3%e9%83%bd%e7%95%99%e7%bb%99%e4%ba%86iphone-8%e5%9b%be.html
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/bayarea/2016/07/07/680336.htm%e7%be%8e%e5%8a%a0%e5%b7%9e%e5%bc%97%e9%9b%b7%e6%96%af%e8%af%ba%e5%8e%bf%e5%8f%91%e7%8e%b0%e9%a6%96%e4%be%8b%e5%af%a8%e5%8d%a1%e7%97%85%e6%af%92%e6%84%9f%e6%9f%93.html
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/aisatimes/2016/07/07/680314.htm%e5%8f%b0%e9%93%81%e6%9d%be%e5%b1%b1%e7%ab%99%e7%88%86%e7%82%b8-21%e4%bc%a4-1%e9%87%8d%e4%bc%a4%e6%88%96%e6%af%81%e5%ae%b9%e8%a7%86%e9%a2%91.html
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/bayarea/2016/07/07/680308.htmhayward%e4%bf%ae%e5%a4%8d%e8%b7%af%e8%be%b9%e8%a3%82%e7%bc%9d-%e6%af%81%e5%9d%8f%e7%8e%b0%e5%ae%9e%e5%9c%b0%e9%9c%87%e5%ae%9e%e9%aa%8c%e5%ae%a4.html
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/bayarea/2016/07/07/680309.htm%e5%b8%88%e8%b5%84%e7%9f%ad%e7%bc%ba-%e6%97%a7%e9%87%91%e5%b1%b1%e6%8f%90%e4%be%9b%e7%ad%be%e7%ba%a6%e5%a5%96%e9%87%91.html
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/fun/2016/07/07/680158.htm%e5%85%a8%e5%9b%bd%e6%9c%80%e7%94%9f%e6%b0%94%e7%9a%84%e6%90%9e%e7%ac%91%e5%90%8d%e5%ad%97-%e4%ba%8f%e4%bb%96%e7%88%b8%e5%a6%88%e6%83%b3%e7%9a%84%e5%87%ba%e6%9d%a5-%e7%bb%84%e5%9b%be.html
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/financial/2016/07/07/680269.htm%e8%84%b1%e6%ac%a7%e6%81%90%e6%85%8c%e6%8c%81%e7%bb%ad-%e9%87%91%e4%bb%b7%e5%86%b2%e8%87%b32%e5%b9%b4%e9%ab%98%e7%82%b9.html
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/tech/2016/07/07/680230.htm%e7%a1%85%e8%b0%b7%e7%a7%91%e6%8a%80%e5%bf%ab%e6%8a%a5%e2%94%802016%e5%b9%b47%e6%9c%887%e6%97%a5.html
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/lifetips/2016/06/21/671187.htm%e4%bb%8e%e5%ad%a9%e5%ad%90%e7%9a%84%e8%a1%a8%e7%8e%b0%e7%9c%8b%e7%88%b6%e6%af%8d%e7%9a%84%e7%bc%ba%e7%82%b9-%e9%9c%87%e6%83%8a%e5%be%88%e5%a4%9a%e4%ba%ba.html
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/lifetips/2016/06/18/670153.htm%e9%99%a4%e8%b4%ad%e7%89%a9%e5%a4%96-costco%e8%bf%98%e6%9c%896%e4%b8%aa%e4%bd%a0%e4%b8%8d%e7%9f%a5%e9%81%93%e7%9a%84%e7%a6%8f%e5%88%a9.html
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/fun/2016/06/18/667571.htm%e7%bb%88%e4%ba%8e%e7%9f%a5%e9%81%93%e5%88%98%e5%be%b7%e5%8d%8e%e4%b8%ba%e4%bb%80%e4%b9%88%e5%af%b9%e6%9c%b1%e4%b8%bd%e5%80%a9%e6%83%85%e6%9c%89%e7%8b%ac%e9%92%9f%ef%bc%8c%e5%b9%b4%e8%bd%bb%e6%97%b6.html
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/lifetips/2016/06/19/670809.htm%e4%ba%94%e5%a4%a7%e5%9d%91%e4%ba%ba%e5%b0%8f%e5%ae%b6%e7%94%b5-%e4%b9%b0%e4%ba%86%e5%bf%85%e5%90%8e%e6%82%94%e7%9a%84-%e4%bd%a0%e4%b8%ad%e6%8b%9b%e4%ba%86%e5%90%97.html
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/lifetips/2016/06/20/670914.htm670914.html
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/aisatimes/2016/06/18/670368.htm%e6%9c%aa%e6%9d%a54%e5%b9%b4%e6%81%90%e7%88%86%e5%8f%91%e7%9a%8410%e5%9c%ba%e6%88%98%e4%ba%89-%e4%b8%ad%e5%9b%bd%e5%8c%85%e5%8a%9e3%e5%90%8d.html
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/us/2016/06/19/670523.htmisis%e6%9b%9d%e6%ad%bb%e4%ba%a1%e5%90%8d%e5%8d%95-%e8%a6%81%e6%9d%807848%e5%90%8d%e7%be%8e%e5%9b%bd%e5%b9%b3%e6%b0%91-%e5%8d%8e%e4%ba%ba%e4%b9%9f%e4%b8%8a%e6%a6%9c.html


(图说：湾区委员会总裁兼首席执行长Jim Wunderman)

这是Amtrak 14年来第一次加开列车。湾区委员会总裁兼首席执行长Jim Wunderman说，从

1990年到现在，中谷地区增加了30万居民，而75%的工作机会仍然在湾区，因此对中谷和湾区

之间的交通有极大需求。奥克兰市交通政策主任Matt Nichols说，新开的班次将提供人们更

多的通勤选择。

(图说：奥克兰市交通政策主任Matt Nichols)

Amtrak官员介绍，新的列车，每排座位都有电路插座，Wifi, 列车上还提供三明治、饮料等

快餐服务 。

Amtrak在加州境内共有365英里长，18个车站，每年的乘客人数为110万人，圣华金线路目前

已经是Amtrak最繁忙线路的排名第五。新的班次开通后，圣华金线路每天有5趟列车往返于

Oakland和Bakersfield之间，另外，还有两趟列车往返于Bakersfield 和沙加缅度之间。

以上是馨恬在奥克兰的采访报道。

养生网热门文章

FUN眼看热门视频

盘点各国的15岁少女 台湾的吓死我
了..!

8

44个可以让你的房间变整洁的实用
整理技巧！

9

内幕：宋祖英女侍曝料 江泽民秽乱
文工团

10

多少人没有熬过46至55岁生命高危
期，生病之前身体会有这些现
象！！ (图)

1

神医扁鹊曾说 有六种人不能治！其
中一种现代超多 组图

2

原来“小米粥”不只好吃！！竟然
还有超强四大功效！！加了“红
枣”更神奇！！

3

不用花大钱！有这4个习惯，让你比
同龄人年轻10岁！(图)

4

坚持健走1周、1月、1年、5年、10
年后，结果震惊了！(图)

5

男子花1000万买来一块
翡翠石，一刀切下去后，

2016年6月18日

这名男子钓到一条大鱼乐73 of 85

https://cat.sv.us.criteo.com/delivery/ck.php?cppv=1&cpp=R%2BanHnxGcUZ2RndLc3orV0FkUmVBY1NwL3haTmQwYTZyK1NFeitUM2ozUit5a2JBZUoycnBEcjhROUtnNzlpZnBWc2NCNFFCL1owYlRleEllejdJTmRybC9aSVpZM0szZVM4UlRIZXIwV29HVE85SWZRVWd1YWNRdFRqTkkrRkR5bFZaUFNLbXpNLzdZN3l1SFZZT01LWXJUbUN0UllyQ3ZGQXRsM25jV0RNaFRHUFVkMTBubTY0MlJHK3h2cmlqVUlsVHZEMG5RSi9VbUN5T08zUmdhR2RSZWVlQ252U2xRUWZTaVpzS3dJRXhmVVdCQ0F6TFZKUGVkbjBwWjFaNFg3T1k0UFA0TDYyVkdTWG5aUEgySXl5RHhlZWtOZEQvelV5Q2NkUERNcmhnZjd0VWJuUm03T0ZoU29kc0dDaERGTS82Mnk4VFNOd3Z6R2tnclVYSmREcHg4WlE9PXw%3D&maxdest=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.bluehost.com%2F%3Futm_source%3Dcriteo%26utm_medium%3Dretargeting
https://info.criteo.com/privacy/informations?static=1&infonorm=3&partner=15127&campaignid=61335&zoneid=120834&bannerid=5153050&displayid=5b2967791f&uaCap=0&aid=8FCUlHxZTkVFMHkrUFJ6UW14TWFQS0ZYZmcrM3pOa01pWDYzOHpnMW1aSUtxTWFnPXw=&u=%7ChgwJGmDZU9woSygArgrgnMQFwYRf6Lxd6ZXo8igFcnE=%7C
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/fun/2016/06/20/671379.htm%e7%9b%98%e7%82%b9%e5%90%84%e5%9b%bd%e7%9a%8415%e5%b2%81%e5%b0%91%e5%a5%b3-%e5%8f%b0%e6%b9%be%e7%9a%84%e5%90%93%e6%ad%bb%e6%88%91%e4%ba%86.html
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/lifetips/2016/06/19/667929.htm44%e4%b8%aa%e5%8f%af%e4%bb%a5%e8%ae%a9%e4%bd%a0%e7%9a%84%e6%88%bf%e9%97%b4%e5%8f%98%e6%95%b4%e6%b4%81%e7%9a%84%e5%ae%9e%e7%94%a8%e6%95%b4%e7%90%86%e6%8a%80%e5%b7%a7%ef%bc%81.html
http://www.bayvoice.net/gb/news/aisatimes/2016/06/19/670669.htm%e5%86%85%e5%b9%95%ef%bc%9a%e5%ae%8b%e7%a5%96%e8%8b%b1%e5%a5%b3%e4%be%8d%e6%9b%9d%e6%96%99-%e6%b1%9f%e6%b3%bd%e6%b0%91%e7%a7%bd%e4%b9%b1%e6%96%87%e5%b7%a5%e5%9b%a2.html
http://healthy.bayvoice.net/gb/medicine-discovery/2016/06/21/207375.htm%e5%a4%9a%e5%b0%91%e4%ba%ba%e6%b2%a1%e6%9c%89%e7%86%ac%e8%bf%8746%e8%87%b355%e5%b2%81%e7%94%9f%e5%91%bd%e9%ab%98%e5%8d%b1%e6%9c%9f%ef%bc%8c%e7%94%9f%e7%97%85%e4%b9%8b%e5%89%8d%e8%ba%ab%e4%bd%93.html
http://healthy.bayvoice.net/gb/chinese-medicine-wisdom/2016/06/20/207294.htm%e7%a5%9e%e5%8c%bb%e6%89%81%e9%b9%8a%e6%9b%be%e8%af%b4-%e6%9c%89%e5%85%ad%e7%a7%8d%e4%ba%ba%e4%b8%8d%e8%83%bd%e6%b2%bb%ef%bc%81%e5%85%b6%e4%b8%ad%e4%b8%80%e7%a7%8d%e7%8e%b0%e4%bb%a3%e8%b6%85%e5%a4%9a.html
http://healthy.bayvoice.net/gb/medicine-all/2016/06/21/207377.htm%e5%8e%9f%e6%9d%a5%e5%b0%8f%e7%b1%b3%e7%b2%a5%e4%b8%8d%e5%8f%aa%e5%a5%bd%e5%90%83%ef%bc%81%ef%bc%81%e7%ab%9f%e7%84%b6%e8%bf%98%e6%9c%89%e8%b6%85%e5%bc%ba%e5%9b%9b%e5%a4%a7%e5%8a%9f.html
http://healthy.bayvoice.net/gb/natural/2016/06/19/207252.htm%e4%b8%8d%e7%94%a8%e8%8a%b1%e5%a4%a7%e9%92%b1%ef%bc%81%e6%9c%89%e8%bf%994%e4%b8%aa%e4%b9%a0%e6%83%af%ef%bc%8c%e8%ae%a9%e4%bd%a0%e6%af%94%e5%90%8c%e9%be%84%e4%ba%ba%e5%b9%b4%e8%bd%bb10%e5%b2%81.html
http://healthy.bayvoice.net/gb/natural/2016/06/20/207288.htm%e5%9d%9a%e6%8c%81%e5%81%a5%e8%b5%b01%e5%91%a8%e3%80%811%e6%9c%88%e3%80%811%e5%b9%b4%e3%80%815%e5%b9%b4%e3%80%8110%e5%b9%b4%e5%90%8e%ef%bc%8c%e7%bb%93%e6%9e%9c%e9%9c%87%e6%83%8a%e4%ba%86%ef%bc%81.html
http://funlook.bayvoice.net/gb/funchannel/funrelax/2016/06/18/37407.htm%e7%94%b7%e5%ad%90%e8%8a%b11000%e4%b8%87%e4%b9%b0%e6%9d%a5%e4%b8%80%e5%9d%97%e7%bf%a1%e7%bf%a0%e7%9f%b3%ef%bc%8c%e4%b8%80%e5%88%80%e5%88%87%e4%b8%8b%e5%8e%bb%e5%90%8e%ef%bc%8c%e6%89%80%e6%9c%89.html
http://funlook.bayvoice.net/gb/funchannel/funrelax/2016/06/18/37394.htm%e8%bf%99%e5%90%8d%e7%94%b7%e5%ad%90%e9%92%93%e5%88%b0%e4%b8%80%e6%9d%a1%e5%a4%a7%e9%b1%bc%e4%b9%90%e5%9d%8f%e4%ba%86%ef%bc%8c%e5%89%96%e5%bc%80%e9%b1%bc%e8%82%9a%e7%9a%84%e7%9e%ac%e9%97%b4%e5%bf%83.html


 
 
 
 

 
EMBARGOED RELEASE Contact: Rufus Jeffris 

June 30, 2016 at 12:01 A.M. O: 415-946-8725 
 C: 415-606-2337 
 rjeffris@bayareacouncil.org 

 

New Report: As Northern California Megaregion Takes 
Shape, Megaproblems Intensify 

 

Challenges Highlight Need for More Collaboration, Planning and Investment 
on Housing, Transportation and Jobs 

 
SAN FRANCISCO, CA – The Northern California megaregion is one of the largest and fastest-
growing in the United States, but the rapid speed and scale at which it is taking shape is creating 
megaproblems that highlight the urgent need for greater collaboration, investment and planning in 
the areas of housing, transportation, education and economic development, and goods movement, 
according to a new report the Bay Area Council Economic Institute released today (June 30). 
 
Encompassing the Bay Area, Sacramento and northern San Joaquin valleys and Monterey Bay 
Area, the NorCal megaregion is home to a complex network of job centers, neighborhoods and 
transportation corridors in 21 counties and 164 cities. The many rail, road, labor, goods movement, 
and innovation connections that currently exist between these once-independent regions provide 
evidence of a growing integration among them.  

The 12.2 million residents that call the megaregion home represent nearly one-third of California’s 
population, with 1.5 million being added since 2000 and another 1.9 million expected by 2030. 
And, the megaregion’s 2014 gross regional product of $875 billion was 5 percent of the nation’s 
GDP and the highest per capita in the country.  

“The blurring lines among these four regions means we need to sharpen our focus on 
megaregional collaboration,” said Dr. Micah Weinberg, President of the Bay Area Council 
Economic Institute. “The Northern California megaregion is like an engine powered by multiple 
cylinders. You get the most power and the most efficiency when all the cylinders are finely tuned 
and firing together. Increasing the connections and coordination among the different parts of the 
megaregion will create an unstoppable economic powerhouse and ensure a high quality of life.” 
 
Read The Northern California Megaregion: Innovative, Connected, Growing>> 
 
Home to three of California’s fastest-growing counties, the NorCal megaregion has also been one 
of the nation’s leading job creators across multiple industries, particularly in technology. Much of 
the job growth has been concentrated in the Bay Area, where rising demand and an historic 
housing shortage has resulted in a perfect storm of skyrocketing rents and home prices. Priced out 
of the Bay Area, growing legions of workers are increasingly seeking less expensive options in 
distant communities to the east. 
 

74 of 85

http://documents.bayareacouncil.org/megaregion.pdf


As a result, although the megaregion’s workforce increased by 17 percent between 1990 and 
2013, the number of commuters crossing “traditional” regional boundaries grew by 78 percent. 
More than two-thirds of them or nearly 175,000 employees, including from areas immediately 
outside the megaregion, commute into the Bay Area for work, resulting in clogged freeways and 
commutes that take hours, contribute to regional air pollution and stymie the state’s efforts to meet 
aggressive targets for reducing greenhouse gas emissions.  
 
Increasing investment in megaregion commuter rail systems like Amtrak’s Capitol Corridor and 
San Joaquins services and the Altamont Corridor Express (ACE) can create stronger and more 
efficient transportation connections, expand ridership capacity and reduce pressure on already 
congested roads and highways, according to the report. Today, the three megaregional rail 
services serve a combined 3 million passenger trips a year, with Amtrak recently announcing the 
expansion of its San Joaquin service to address growing ridership.   
 
Improving coordination among passenger and commercial freight rail carriers that share the same 
tracks can also help expand the capacity for both and support the megaregion’s important trade 
and goods movement industry. That will be important as projections show that by 2020 the major 
rail segments in the megaregion will be operating very near capacity. 
 
Better distributing job growth within the megaregion across a range of industries could also hold 
the answer to nagging housing and transportation problems, the report suggests, while also 
helping spread greater prosperity. 
 
The Bay Area technology industry has been a chief driver of new jobs in Northern California, fueled 
largely by the heavy concentration of highly educated workers and a strong network of public and 
private universities, state and community colleges and research laboratories. Raising education 
levels throughout the megaregion by increasing investment in state and community colleges and 
building better connections with employers can make regions outside the Bay Area more attractive 
for companies looking to start a business or grow. That can also help attract more venture capital 
investment to inland regions as entrepreneurs, start-ups and growing companies look for less 
expensive alternatives to the Bay Area, including outside the state. 
 
There’s evidence this is already happening. Since 1990, the Sacramento area has seen the 
greatest increase of workers on a percentage basis in the high-tech sector of any California region. 
A thriving innovation and tech sector in the Tri-Valley area is leading to strong connections with 
bordering San Joaquin County. 
   
“There’s no reason to cede our thriving tech economy to places like Boston, Austin and Seattle 
when the NorCal megaregion offers plenty of room, connections and opportunity,” said Jim 
Wunderman, President and CEO of the Bay Area Council. “We can have our cake and eat it, too, 
but we need mega-planning to stay ahead and address our housing, transportation and workforce 
challenges. It means breaking down traditional geographic and other barriers and working 
together.” 
 
Among the specific recommendations for the megaregion that are included in the report: 
 

• Make a substantial investment in education outside the Bay Area to spread 
businesses and workforce talent across a broader geography. Investments in 
California State University system, the community college network, and apprenticeship 
programs in inland areas can prepare residents for jobs in growing industries, including 
technology, health care, business services and logistics. 

75 of 85



 

• Create economic development structures that cross county lines. Currently, economic 
development efforts are locally-oriented.  Enhanced information sharing across the 
megaregion can help companies expand operations in places such as Davis and 
Sacramento instead of in competitive regions such as Portland or Austin with similar 
workforce profiles and affordability. 

 

• Prioritize improved and expanded service of megaregional rails lines. Intra-regional 
transit systems, particularly passenger rail, need to be expanded to move millions of 
commuters more efficiently throughout the region. That means supporting expanded 
service on ACE, San Joaquins and Capitol Corridor routes and prioritizing investment in 
megaregional rail hubs in Livermore, San Jose, and Oakland in the 2018 California State 
Rail Plan. 

 

• Streamline housing approval processes across the megaregion, especially those 
that are served by transit. Governor Jerry Brown proposes that cities and counties require 
only “by-right” approval for certain types of housing projects. By-right approval can help to 
spur housing development across the Northern California megaregion and facilitate higher 
density building near existing or planned rail stations, giving residents greater choice in 
where they live and work. 

 

• Institute a statewide tax credits to incentivize new business development and job 
creation in inland areas. The package of tax credits issued at the state level, including a 
venture capital investment tax credits, a geographically targeted R&D tax credit, and a New 
Markets Tax Credit, would promote the movement of more capital to other parts of the 
megaregion. 

 
# # # 

 
About the Bay Area Council Economic Institute 
The Bay Area Council Economic Institute is a public-private partnership of business, labor, 
government and higher education that works to foster a competitive economy in California and the 
San Francisco Bay Area, including San Francisco, Oakland and Silicon Valley. The Economic 
Institute produces authoritative analyses on economic policy issues affecting the region and the 
state, including infrastructure, globalization, energy, science and governance, and mobilizes 
California and Bay Area leaders around targeted policy initiatives. 
 

76 of 85



 

 

                                                               

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Northern California Megaregion Study Identifies ACE and Amtrak San 

Joaquins Rail Services as Key to Transportation Future 
 
 

Stockton (CA) – The Bay Area Council Economic Institute’s Northern California Megaregion study identified 
Altamont Corridor Express (ACE) and Amtrak San Joaquins services as key to helping ease congestion in the San 
Joaquin Valley and Bay Area.  The NorCal megaregion features 21 counties and 164 cities, and has over 12 million 
residents, almost one third of California’s population – encompassing the Bay Area, Sacramento and Northern San 
Joaquin Valley (San Joaquin, Stanislaus, and Merced Counties), and Monterey Bay Area. 

 

The NorCal megaregion is one of the largest and fastest-growing in the United States, but the rapid speed and 
scale at which it is taking shape is creating “megaproblems” that highlight the urgent need for greater collaboration, 
investment and planning in the areas of housing, transportation, education and economic development, and goods 
movement, according to the new report the Bay Area Council Economic Institute released today. 

 

While the megaregion’s workforce increased by 17% between 1990 and 2013, commuting increased by 78% to 
nearly 175,000 employees daily, due to housing shortages and rising real estate costs in the Bay Area.  

 

The study recommends supporting expanded investment in rail service in the region, including the Stockton based 
ACE and Amtrak San Joaquins, while prioritizing megaregional rail hubs in Livermore, San Jose, and Oakland.  
These steps would help expand ridership easing roadway congestion, reducing greenhouse gas emissions as well 
as strengthening competiveness and economic growth in the NorCal megaregion. 

 

“The blurring lines among these four regions means we need to sharpen our focus on megaregional collaboration,” 
said Dr. Micah Weinberg, President of the Bay Area Council Economic Institute. “The Northern California 
megaregion is like an engine powered by multiple cylinders. You get the most power and the most efficiency when 
all the cylinders are finely tuned and firing together. Increasing the connections and coordination among the different 
parts of the megaregion will create an unstoppable economic powerhouse and ensure a high quality of life.” 

 

Read The Northern California Megaregion: Innovative, Connected, Growing>> 

 

“There are over 65,000 commuters traveling daily from the Northern San Joaquin Valley to the Bay Area  – most of 
which are coming over the Altamont Pass,” said Lodi City Councilmember Bob Johnson, Chair of the San Joaquin 
Regional Rail Commission.  “We are very pleased this study of the Northern California Megaregion highlights the 
importance of improving and expanding the Altamont Corridor Express (ACE) service to help meet the growing 
transportation demands between the Northern San Joaquin Valley, the Tri-Valley, and the Silicon Valley.” 

 

NEWS RELEASE 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 

June 30, 2016 
 

Contact: 
Chris Kay, Ace Rail / SJRRC - (209) 944-6242 

David Lipari, Amtrak San Joaquins / SJJPA - (209) 944-6278 

 

77 of 85

http://documents.bayareacouncil.org/megaregion.pdf


“As the communities within the Northern California Megaregion continue to grow, we must meet their needs by 
striving to offer additional train service throughout the megaregion,” said Merced County Supervisor John Pedrozo, 
Chair of the San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority.  “Riders need frequent, convenient scheduling options to choose 
from in order to incorporate train travel into their business or leisure trips.  Increasing the frequency of Amtrak San 
Joaquins will greatly improve the connectivity between the San Joaquin Valley, the Bay Area, and Sacramento”. 

ACE, started in 1998, runs four round trips starting at the Cabral Station in Downtown Stockton and running through 
Lathrop/Manteca, Tracy, Livermore, Pleasanton, Fremont, Great America, Santa Clara and San Jose’s Diridon 
station.  For more information on ACE Rail, please visit www.acerail.com.  

 
The San Joaquins is Amtrak’s 5th busiest route with 365 miles of track, 18 stations, 1.1 million annual riders and 
provides a safe, comfortable, reliable way to travel throughout California. The San Joaquins has five daily trips 
through the San Joaquin Valley between Bakersfield and Oakland and two daily round-trips between Bakersfield 
and Sacramento. For more information on Amtrak San Joaquins, please visit www.AmtrakSanJoaquins.com. 

 
 

#### 
 
 

Chris Kay 
Manager of Marketing and Community Outreach 
Ace Rail/San Joaquin Regional Rail Commission 
(209) 944-6242 
Chris@acerail.com  

 

David Lipari 
Marketing and Outreach Coordinator 
Amtrak San Joaquins / San Joaquin 
Joint Powers Authority 
(209) 944-6278 
David@sjjpa.com 

 
 
 

The San Joaquin Regional Rail Commission (SJRRC) owns and operates 
and is the policy-making body for the Altamont Corridor Express (ACE) 
service. SJRRC is governed by a Board of Directors, the members of 
which are appointed by the San Joaquin Council of Governments (SJCOG) 
based on nominations by the local elected government. Ex-officio members 
represent Caltrans District 10, the San Joaquin Regional Transit District 
(SJRTD), and SJCOG. 
 
 
As of July 2015, SJJPA is responsible for the management and 
administration of the Amtrak San Joaquins service.  SJJPA is governed by 
Board Members representing each of the 10 Member Agencies along the 
365-mile San Joaquin route. For more information on SJJPA see 
www.sjjpa.com. 
 
 
 
 
The Bay Area Council Economic Institute is a public-private partnership of 
business, labor, government and higher education that works to foster a 
competitive economy in California and the San Francisco Bay Area, 
including San Francisco, Oakland and Silicon Valley. The Economic 
Institute produces authoritative analyses on economic policy issues 
affecting the region and the state, including infrastructure, globalization, 
energy, science and governance, and mobilizes California and Bay Area 
leaders around targeted policy initiatives. 

78 of 85

mailto:Chris@acerail.com
mailto:David@sjjpa.com
http://www.sjjpa.com/


ACE, Amtrak Trains Key To Transportation Future

POSTED July 6, 2016 11:38 a.m.
The Bay Area Council Economic Institute’s Northern California Megaregion study identified Altamont Corridor
Express (ACE) and Amtrak San Joaquins services as key to helping ease congestion in the San Joaquin Valley
and Bay Area. The NorCal megaregion features 21 counties and 164 cities, and has over 12 million residents,
almost one third of California’s population – encompassing the Bay Area, Sacramento and Northern San
Joaquin Valley (San Joaquin, Stanislaus, and Merced counties), and the Monterey Bay Area.

The NorCal megaregion is one of the largest and fastest-growing in the United States, but the rapid speed and
scale at which it is taking shape is creating “megaproblems” that highlight the urgent need for greater
collaboration, investment and planning in the areas of housing, transportation, education and economic
development, and goods movement, according to the new report the Bay Area Council Economic Institute
released in late June.

While the megaregion’s workforce increased by 17 percent between 1990 and 2013, commuting increased by
78 percent to nearly 175,000 employees daily, due to housing shortages and rising real estate costs in the Bay
Area.

The study recommends supporting expanded investment in rail service in the region, including the Stockton
based ACE and Amtrak San Joaquins, while prioritizing megaregional rail hubs in Livermore, San Jose, and
Oakland. These steps would help expand ridership easing roadway congestion, reducing greenhouse gas
emissions as well as strengthening competiveness and economic growth in the NorCal megaregion.

“The blurring lines among these four regions means we need to sharpen our focus on megaregional
collaboration,” said Dr. Micah Weinberg, President of the Bay Area Council Economic Institute. “The Northern
California megaregion is like an engine powered by multiple cylinders. You get the most power and the most
efficiency when all the cylinders are finely tuned and firing together. Increasing the connections and
coordination among the different parts of the megaregion will create an unstoppable economic powerhouse and
ensure a high quality of life.”

79 of 85



“There are thousands of commuters traveling daily from the Northern San Joaquin Valley to the Bay Area –
most of which are coming over the Altamont Pass,” added Lodi City Councilmember Bob Johnson, Chair of the
San Joaquin Regional Rail Commission. “We are very pleased this study of the Northern California Megaregion
highlights the importance of improving and expanding the Altamont Corridor Express (ACE) service to help
meet the growing transportation demands between the Northern San Joaquin Valley, the Tri-Valley, and the
Silicon Valley.”

“As the communities within the Northern California Megaregion continue to grow, we must meet their needs by
striving to offer additional train service throughout the megaregion,” said Merced County Supervisor John
Pedrozo, Chair of the San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority. “Riders need frequent, convenient scheduling
options to choose from in order to incorporate train travel into their business or leisure trips. Increasing the
frequency of Amtrak San Joaquins will greatly improve the connectivity between the San Joaquin Valley, the Bay
Area, and Sacramento.”

ACE, started in 1998, runs four round trips starting at the Cabral Station in Downtown Stockton and running
through Lathrop/Manteca, Tracy, Livermore, Pleasanton, Fremont, Great America, Santa Clara and San Jose’s
Diridon station.

For more information on ACE Rail, visit www.acerail.com.

The San Joaquins is Amtrak’s fifth busiest route with 365 miles of track, 18 stations, 1.1 million annual riders
and provides a safe, comfortable, reliable way to travel throughout California. The San Joaquins has five daily
trips through the San Joaquin Valley between Bakersfield and Oakland and two daily round-trips between
Bakersfield and Sacramento.

For more information on Amtrak San Joaquins, visit www.AmtrakSanJoaquins.com.

80 of 85



Bay Area Council Economic Institute urges rail investment 
Central Valley Business Journal

July 1, 2016

SACRAMENTO — The Altamont Corridor Express and Amtrak San Joaquins services are key to helping relieve
congestion in the Northern California Megaregion, according to a new report by the Bay Area Council Economic
Institute.

At its meeting in Sacramento Thursday, it discussed a new report it has produced with data from the University
of the Pacific, which looked at the challenges the megaregion faces. Those include housing, economic
development and education. Most of the meeting addressed transportation, however.

The report found that while the megaregion’s workforce increased by 17 percent between 1990 and 2013,
commuting increased by 78 percent to nearly 175,000 employees daily, due to housing shortages and rising
real estate costs in the Bay Area.

“We’ve got to figure out ways to get these people around,”  said the institute’s research manager Jeff Bellasario.
He said that while ACE and Amtrak will be key to improving transportation in the region, they need better
funding to expand.  “They’re fairly tapped out.”

The study recommends supporting expanded investment in rail service in the region, including the Stockton-
based ACE and Amtrak San Joaquins. It suggests that megaregional rail hubs in Livermore, San Jose, and
Oakland should be priorities.

Those steps would help expand ridership easing roadway congestion, reducing greenhouse gas emissions as
well as strengthening competiveness and economic growth in the NorCal megaregion, the institute said.

81 of 85



“This is something we can do.  We have benefits of two very high performing, existing train systems ( Amtrak’s
capital corridor and ACE )” said Sacramento Area Council of Governments CEO Mike McKeever. “We’re all on
the same page on this. Let’s do it.”

The institute is a think tank devoted to economic development and cooperation among Northern California’s 21
counties, including San Joaquin, Stanislaus and Merced.  It includes 164 cities, and has more than 12 million
residents — almost one third of California’s population — encompassing the Bay Area, Sacramento, the
Northern San Joaquin Valley and Monterey Bay.

82 of 85



Facebook Complaint 6/29/2016: Regarding misinformation for 1-800-USA-RAIL 

 

 

83 of 85



DIRECTIONS TO JULY 22, 2016 SJJPA BOARD MEETING AT ANTIOCH CITY COUNCIL 

CHAMBERS 

200 H Street, Antioch at 1:30 pm 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Amtrak – San Joaquins 

Getting there: 

The San Joaquins Northbound 711 Daily (departing from Bakersfield at 8:00 am) arrives at the Antioch 

Amtrak Station at 12:47 p.m.  The San Joaquins Southbound 714 Daily (departing from Oakland at 9:55 

am) arrives at the Antioch Amtrak Station at 11:04 am.  The Antioch Amtrak Station is located 0.2 miles 

(3 blocks) away from the City Council Chambers, and is an estimated 3 minute walk.   

For those coming from Sacramento, the Capitol Corridor can be taken to Martinez to connect to the San 

Joaquins Southbound 714. 

 

Returning: 

The San Joaquins Southbound 708 Daily (to Bakersfield) departs Antioch Station at 3:39 p.m.  The San 

Joaquins Northbound 713 Daily (to Oakland) departs Antioch Station at 3:22 p.m.  

 
84 of 85



 

 

We strongly encourage Board Members, Working Group Members, and members of the Public to use 

the Amtrak San Joaquins to get to the SJJPA Board Meeting if possible.   

Driving 

For those driving, 200 H Street is located on the north end of Downtown Antioch, near the edge of the 

San Joaquin River.   

Coming from the east, take CA-4 (west) towards Antioch.  Take A Street/Lone Tree Way Exit 28.  Turn 

right onto A Street for 1.3 miles.  Turn left on W 3rd Street (heading west for .3 miles).  City Hall will be on 

the right. 

Coming from the west, take CA-4 (east) towards Antioch/Pittsburg.  Take Somersville Road Exit 26A.  

Turn left onto Auto Center Drive and drive about .8 miles; continue straight onto Somersville Road and 

drive about .3 miles; continue straight to stay on W. 4th Street for about .5 miles.  Turn left onto H Street; 

City Hall will be located directly ahead. 

Public parking is available at City Hall, at the corner of W 3rd Street and H Street.     

 

 

 

Antioch

85 of 85


	Agenda for July 22  2016 SJJPA Board Meeting
	Agenda Item 2.1  May 27 SJJPA Board Meeting Minutes
	Agenda Item 2.2 Next Mtg Location
	Agenda Item 2.3 SJJPA Monthly Expense Report
	Agenda Item 2.3a SJJPA April FY15-16 Operating Expense Report
	April

	Agenda Item 4 City of Antioch - Rivertown Revitalization Presentation
	Agenda Item 5 Bay Area Council NorCal Megaregion Presentation
	Agenda Item 5.1. Passenger Rail Section of Megaregion Report
	megaregion_study 1
	megaregion_study 37
	megaregion_study 38
	megaregion_study 39
	megaregion_study 40
	megaregion_study 41
	megaregion_study 42
	megaregion_study 43
	megaregion_study 44

	Agenda Item 6 Minor Capital and Safety and Security Projects and Reso
	Agenda Item 7 Safety and Security & OL Update
	Agenda Item 8 Approve Support for CA Rail Safety Month
	Agenda Item 8.1 Resolution - Rail Safety Proclamation
	Agenda Item 9 San Joaquin Operations Update
	Agenda Item 10 Selection of Fresno as Mid-Corridor Location
	Agenda Item 10.1  Resolution to select Fresno for Mid-Corridor Starts
	Agenda Item 11 Approve Resolutions Supporting Sales Tax Measures
	Agenda Item 11.1 Draft Support Letter for Contra Costa County Sales Tax Measure
	Agenda Item 11.2 Draft Support Letter for Stanislaus County Sales Tax Measure
	Agenda Item 11.3 Draft Support Letter for Merced County Sales Tax Measure
	Agenda Item 12 Approve Revisions to Marketing and Outreach Plan
	Agenda Item 12.1 Revisons to SJJPA 2016-17 Marketing and Outreach Plan
	Agenda Item 13 Marketing and Outeach for 7th Daily Update
	Agenda Item 13.1 Images of Key 7th Daily Materials
	Agenda Item 14 Bay Area Region Marketing and Outreach Update
	Agenda Item 15 Food Service Update
	Agenda Item 16 Executive Director's Report
	Agenda Item 17 Administrative Items
	Agenda Item 17.1 Administrative Item Back Up
	17.1.1. sjjpa_new round trip news release
	17.1.2. KERO Bakersfield
	17.1.3. CVBJ
	17.1.4. SF Bay Area News
	17.1.5. Fresno Bee
	17.1.6. KFSN Fresno
	17.1.7. Sound of Hope
	17.1.8. Bay Area Council Megaregion Release
	17.1.9. Ace and San Joaquins Joint Megaregion Release
	Northern California Megaregion Study Identifies ACE and Amtrak San Joaquins Rail Services as Key to Transportation Future

	17.1.10. Oakdale Leader
	17.1.11. CVBJ - Megaregion
	17.1.12. Cafe Car Issue

	July 22 Directions


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




